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1. Key Managemsant Personnel, Board of Governors and Prefesalonal adviasrs

Key managenent peraonnel are defined as mambers of tha Executive Tearm and wern
represanted by ihe following in 2016 7

= Cormrlenne Feasgoad, Prinzipal and CED; Accsunling Qfear

« Jderry Whita. Dapuly Principal

+ Halan Richardsen-Hulme Director of Studeni Services

= Steve Thorps, Assistant Principal Diversifcation

» Julia Buckiand, Assistanl Frincipal Teaching, Learning and Assasstranl

+ Elmina Dale. Assizlart Principal Exparance of Work

Baard of Governars

A, full list of Governcrs is given on page 15 al hese lnancial sletemanls,
Clare Johnson, Gk to the Corparalion has been in position elnce 2 Augost 20146 o prasent.

Profeasicnal adviasrs

= Financial statements and ragularity auditors:

KFMZ LLP
Craganlly Houss
2 Gilders Way
Marwich
MR3 1LE

» Internal auditors:
Semitan Bland
Fitzroy Housa
Crown Strest
Ipswich
Suffalk
P13l

» Bankers:
Lionerds

16 Gentheman's YWailk

Moarwich, Warfolk
NR2 TLE

+ Balicitors:
Mills & Reava LEFP
1 5t James Courd
Whilsfriars
Marwich
MNRE3 1REU
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2. Oparating and Financial Ravioew

Nature, Objectives and Stratagies

The membars present their reépart and the audited financal statamants for the year endaed 31 July
2017,

Legal stalus

The Corporation wes eslablished under ¥ Further and Higher Educanon Acl 1992 for the
purpose of conduchng Nemwch Gty Collega of Further and Higher Education "City College
Morwich™). The College is an exempt chanty for the purposes of the Chartties Act 2011,

Mizsion
The Collage’s mission as approved by its members is: Chailenging minds, inapiring suceess

Chailenging Minds — this |¢ whal education is all abayl; il rsinforees cur asplrations around
stretching students: it's 2bout teaching students to think diffarently; I's about enfchment and
extracurricular slulf {240; if nesds to be intarpraled ag how we enable vosalonal skills 1o be
aceaseed alao not simply academic and coordinating cognitive astivities and physlcal aclvities is
a chitical camzonent of what we are raally good =l

Inspiring Success = success for all our sludents is our Wltlmate goal: we want 1o mepirs tharm o
achieve, wharever possible axceading thair goals; we want ihe eurngulym (o be inspirational — n
ke cerntent and |ls delivery; we want our slaff to bea inspired and to be ingpralional 1o our sludents.

Public Benafit

City College Monwlsh is an exempt charity undar Pad 3 af the Charilies Act 2011 and following
the Machinery of Governmen ¢changes in July 2016 is regulatad by the Secratary of Stala far
Edwcation lor all FE Corporations in England.

The members of the Corparallon, wha are Irustees of tha charity, are disclosed on page 15. In
salting and reylewing the College’s siratagic otyectves, the Goveiring Body has had due redard
far the Charity Commission's guidance on public beraiit nd pardiculady upan its supplementary
guidance on the advancemant of education. The guidance sats eut the requiremeant that all
arganisalions wishing o be recognisad as charilies must demonstrata, axpligilly, that their aims
are far ihe public banefit

In dehvering its mission, ihe College provides the following idenlifiable publle bensfita through the
advancenient ol educallon:

» High-qualily 1eaching

« Widaning parlicipation ant tackling accral excluzion

2 Exgalient ermployment record for stucdents

e Shohg stwdent suppor syelems

» Links with emplayars. mdustny and commernce

= Links with Mew Anglia Local Entargrise Pardnership

Strategy

26T has baen the third full azaderic year of aperalion of the College’'s new Sirategic

Frarmewark. The frameuswark was Jevaloped through extensive congaltabon with students, slaff,
guverngrs ant stakeholders and is orgarnieed with kaur "piflars™
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+ Community, Emplawers andd Stakenoldars,
+« Sludents,
» Cullure of Excellence,

v Growth and Sustainahility

Tha Stralegic Frarmewerk iz accornpaniad by 5 Strafegic Aims and succees Indlicators, which are
as follows:

Alm One: To achieve outstanding cutcomas tor cur sludents, amplayvars and othor clicnts with &
welcoming and engagqing envimnrmeht thal s respactful, Incluglve and fosters swooess

Success Indicators

« Measures of siudeni achievement and prograssion are outslanding

« Provision judged by external bodies 1o be of Ihy highast possible grade

« Eludant involvament in designing, delivernirg and commisacning fearning
« Veary high student, slaft, empléyer and stakshglder satizfaclon ratingz

Alm Two! To be recognised as 4 driving force in skills raining (or raeggnal econonic
dovaloprment.

Succeks Indicatars

« Emplover or other slakeholder ‘spanasr for 1 full-imea programmes

« Excallent, industry standard facilities available for dalivar

« Curnculum conslanity reviewed and, whena possibhe, abgned 1o ragianal pricties

» Laeaming modsals and infrastructure devaloped to anable studanie to leam anmywhere

Aim Thres: Ta achlove axcellence through our ahbility o challenge azach other, and aur processes,
AL wa leam, leach and work 1ogelher,

Success Indicators
v Ways of Working embedded in etaff nd student [fa al our college

Highly eflective processes and procaduras which limit our impact on the environment

L

Stafl journey focuszed on maximising individual patential and well-being

Strong stakeholder paricipation in aur evalualion and revlsw processes

Airn Four: To achieve financial sustanabbily threugh efficient and effactive use of our human and
physical assets whilst confldently taking intelligent risks aligned to our strategic frameweork.
Suceess Indicators

« Financial resourcas enable us bo meel our siralegic aime

« Al staff confident in praslising anlraprenzunial thought and Belion

s All curriculum greas have a profitable commercial income sirazm

« Cualified and exparlanced workforce, excellent in their tigld

Alm Flve: To work with our sludents, community, employers and stakehalders I grder to grow
our collage and Increase our influenca,
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Success Indicators
= Partnerships with other colleges and providers give us more influence than we would have on

our own

= High profile, well recognised celebrations of success

« Slaff, stludents and alumni confidently promoting our college

= Strong and productive parinerships with a broad range of employers, schaols and other
stakeholders

A rolling programme of the agreement and monitoring of annual Strategic, Improvement and
Enhancement Targets is completed by the College to meet the develop in & way consistent with
the Strategic Framework by 2018. In addition, actions resulting from the Colleges comprehensive
Self-Assessment Report (SAR) process are set and monitored.

Im 209617 there were § strategy targets, 11 improvement targets, 8 enhancement targets and 7
SAR targets. These were set in collaboration with the Academic Management Board and
scrulinised and monitored by Governors through review at every meeting.

Achievement of stralagy largets is as follows:

SAT Quality of HE - College achieves "meets expectations” for new HEFCE Annual
Provider Review process: The College achieved a "meets expectations with an agreed action
plan® rating and this action was considered green. Ongoing work with HEFCE continues
preductively on the Action Plan.

B Quality of FE - 88% of curriculum SAR grades to be good or outstanding: 13 of the 17
graded S5A reports were graded as outstanding or good grades which equates to 768%. The four
areas receiving a grade 3 (Requires Improvement) grade are GCSE Phoanix Plus, Adult
Education, Hospitality and Initial Teacher Education. This target is not achieved.

SAZ3: FE student satisfaction +2% to 82% - Overall FE student satisfaction increased by 2% to
84% and thersefore this target was met.

B HE student satisfaction +10% to B6% - HE student satisfaction, as measured by the NSS
fell by 3% to 70% and so this targel was not met,

BB Staff satisfaction +3% to 85%: The outcomes of the Staff Survey have racently become
available and will be discussed in detall at the nexi Business Committee. 60% of staff responded
which is declina from previous years. Whilst there were a number of positive movements on many
questions. the Overall Summary resull remained static at 82% and therefore the target was not
achievead.

SAG: Finance KPls B0% green at the end of year and financial health grading of good

maintained: The details of the performance against this larget is reporied in the Finance report to
Board but it is rated green as the College has maintained its "good” rating for Financial Health.

Financial Objectives
The Coliege’s financial objectives are:

« 1o achieve an annual operating surplus
= to pursue alternative sources of funding, on a selective basis, consistent with the College’s core
competencies, and the need for a financial contribution to the College's overall finances
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» o generate suillsiand levals of income to supper the assal base of the College
v to fuither improve the Collega's shotter tarm liquidity
v Lo fund continged capital investmanil

A panes of padarmanea indicalors have been agreed to menitor the suceassiul implementation of
zl=llle |20

Performance indicators

Tha Collega has continued to peform well on many key meaasures during 201617, This
assessment is furlher supported by he Collega balng awarded an GFSTED pearall alfaclvensass
grade of Good in February 2017, a reporl in which avery sub-grada was judged good axcept for
High Meads Provision which waz rated culsiarding,

Headline achieveman! ralas hawve far 16-18 yaar old's have incraaged by 1.5% to stand wetl above
201516 Natoneal Averases. A kay driver inthis increass was batler pass rates in holh A level and
GOCSE pravision.  High Grade achievermant in the challenging GCSE Malhs and English resil
qualifications also increased, wilh some aspecially sirong progress in English.

Faor 18+ provision, a small 0.5% reduchon in ovarall achievement rates was driven by reducad
pass rates, particulary In furcteral skills. Howsaver, some other signlficant areas of provision
such as Ascees 1o HE showed stsong improvements in ashievameant ratas increasing by over 5%

In 2010617 the College was reasenably successful in performance againsl funding targets as
indicated by Table 1 below. Lower than tangeted 18-18 rectinfrman caused in part by declining 16~
18 demographles, will impact on 20171E allvcatiane wia the lagged learner mecha nlsem.
Apprenticeship performance was sirong and maiched allocalions whikst the Adull Bducation
Budget was not fully uthsed despite some good growlh in grovisioh aseae such as ESOL

Funding % of target

Tabla 1 Target 2016M7 Out-turn | achieved
18-14 Classroom Learning | £19.444541 | £147.5300.657 | 88 1%
(inGluding high nesds) . ED0 554,867 13306440 HR50%
| 16-18 Appranhceships £1,845.081 £1.867,772 _101.23%
| Adult Edugatien Budgat total £3.318,221 £35.024 012 91.16%
Of whieh 19+ Aporeniicesiips £7, 224, 02 ET. 226,667 G0 &7 %

Financial reaulis

Tha total comprehensive income for il paar was 8 deficit of £1, 867k [£1,518k deficit 2015716} -
tha deficit is dug to tha angoing actuarial lossas on the Logal Govamment Pension Scheme
iabililiza, Tha Coliege genersted an oparating surplus (before FRS10Z Penxicns adjusimeanie} in
the year of E541k (EET2k surplus in 201 5/16). including the FRS102 Panelons and Hokiday
Accnial Adiustments the surptusideficit befora other galns and losses was £73k deficit (E403k
surplus in 20116}

Thea College has tangible fixed assets of £25,453k 81 31 July 2017 {(£26,260k at 35 July 20716} and
net current assols of 3,968k (E2,256k at 31 July 2016), includéing cash belaneeas of £7, 110k
(£5,354k at 31 July 2016}, Cradiors greatar than ane year ane £8,024k at 31 July 2017 fED.487k
at 31 July 2018) and these comprise a bank loan (82 082%), a SALIK energy affaiancy an
(£120k) and deferred governmenl capilat granls [£6,826k). The tefined banefll pansion liability for
{he Local Govermnment Pansicn Scheme wae £19, 830k at 31 July 2017 (E17 143k 2 31 July Z01E)
ard ather provisiens tolaled £3,073k at 21 July 2017 (£4,038k at 31 July 2018}
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The College has accumulated reseras sl 21 July 2017 of E4, 110k {deficit) (£2.143k deficit at 31
July 20116 The overall retuction in reservas In 2HBM7 is primarlly due to acluarial loss of
£1,393k on the Local Govartment Pension Schama lighiliies. This less i nat within the conlrml of
the College and is a figure provided by fhe actuany to the Narfalk Lacal Sovarnmeart Pension
Scheme, Excluding Ihe impaci of the maln Local Government Penslon Schama Liability, e
wollege has an |&E reserve of £4,004k surplus at 31 July 2047 {£6,988k surplus at 31 July 2018}
and a ravaluahon reserve of £7,700k (£7,204k at 31 July 2018),

The Collaye has significant reliance on the Educabien and Skills Funding Aasncy tor its principal
funding souiee. In 201617 the ESFA provided G8% (204 516 53%) of the Collegs's total income.

The Callags is committed to ebserving the imperance of sactor misasures and indicators and ysa
ihe FE Chaices websile which looks &t measures such as success rates. The Collage iz requirad
1o camplete the annual Finence Record for the Education and Skifls Funding Agency. The Finance
Facotd produces a financlal health grading. The cument rating of Good (keth for 2096017 and for
2077-18 budged] is ennsiderad an accapiabls oulcoma.

Political and charltable contribufions
The College made no political or charllable contibutions during tha year.
Subsidiary companias

The College owng 51% of the £1 ordinary share capital of Nodalk Educational Services Limited
("MES’). a company incarparated in England and Yales, Morfalk Educational Serviees Limitad
was aslablished to provide shared =services to the TEN Group, The remainieg A15% of the £1
ordinary share capital is ovned by TEM and on the base of wling rights and conleplling influence
the resulis of MES ara consalideled info the TEN Group accounts {nol the College!.

Treazury policies and objectives

Treasury management is the management of the Callege’s cash flows, ite benking, monay market
and caplial markel ransactlanz; tha effective contral of (he risks assocatad Wil lhosa activikas:
and 1he pursuit ol aptitnum performance coansistent wilh thosa risks,

Tha Callags has a separaie traasury mmanagement podley In place.

Short term borrowing far temporery revenue purposes is authorized by Ihe Accouniing Oficer, Al
barrowdng requires the authorizatlan of the Corporatlon and shall comply with the reaquiraments of
Iha Financial Memarandum.

Casth licenws

Owerall cash has increased by £1 758k dusing 201517 (increaze of £975Kk 2016/18). This
movement (s comprizad:

» Operating cash nflow of £2, 924k (201516 £1.587 1k cash inflow);

» Mol cash outllow frem invasting activities E838k (201 5/16 ES47k cash oulflaw); and

» MNet cash outflow from financing activilies £330k (2015716 nel cash oulflgw of £40k).

v Cashal 31 July 2007 was £7, 710k (31 July 2016 £5,254k),

Tha College has & long-lerm loan of £2, 256k a 31 July 2077 (£2,422k af 31 July 2016), This will
be rapad over a 10 year peaod with 2 fixed rate of interast,
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Resources

Tha Collage has varaus resaurces thal It can deploy In purswit of its sirategin objeclives.

Financial

The Collane has 2 net liability posilion on the balance sheel of £4,110k at 31 July 2017 [£2,143k
at 31 July 2014G).

The net iability posillon s comprised:

« Income and expendilure ascaunt of £8.004k sumplos (£6 988k surplas 3t 31 July 2016

« Local Governmen! pension schernn Fesenve £19.930k delicit (£17,142k daficit at 31 July 2016)
« Revaluation reserve £7, 708k surplus (£F B4k surplus af 31 July 201E)

« Restricted reserve €107k surplus (£108k surplus at 21 July 2018]

People

The Callege enplays 6659 (201546 530) paople [expressed as full time equivalants), of whom
274 (2016 6. 280) are teaching staff.

Current and Future Devalopmen and Performance

Studanrt numbars

The 20167 studenl numbers arc presentad in tabke bekew.

Year " 48,48 Studants 19+ Students Apnprantices

FEREE 4440 2050 1200

21 415 T 446D 1380 1420 |
TE015/16 AE20 ' 080 135¢ |
06T 4700 1320 1350

1618 recruitmenl dechnzd in 231817 in line with demographlc changes whilst zpprenticashlp
delivery was breadly consistent wilh previous years. Adull Education prowvision bagan & grow
again wath English for Speakers of Other Languages (ESOL) growirg strongly to meet kaal
damand.

Stugent achievements

The stident oulsemes far the College were judgad Lo ba good by OFETED during thair vislt in
February 2017,

18-18 studanls continue 1o achieve well a1 Tty College Nonwich, with most headline
achievernanl rates wel above gomparabla 2015/16 Mational Averages. In several areas, the
padatmanes of studenks ranks emengst the top 20 colleges nallanally. Sontinued focus on (he
pragress of studanle and high grades continues 1o 8nsura the College is siralhing slodents to
achieve thair highest possithe aulcomea with 2016017 seeing improved high-grade outcomes for
bnlh A Lavalz and the kay English and maths GESE

For 18+ provisian, 201617 was & year of mixed performance. The Celleges zignificant Access
io HE programmes eaw improvad retention and pest rates diiving parformancea up 1o lewvels
aver 10% above comparable Nalional Averages. Conversely Tunctional skills, ar araa of
axisting concern, [giled 1o maks significant progress leading le a concartec cverhaul of
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processas being implementad in 201718,

In 26T HE student achievarnenls were strong. The number of studenls graduating with
undergraduate awards al 1sl or 21 award (known as Good Honours) declined slightly from the
2013116 bigh point. Howaver the propartlon of studenls acheswiivg @ 15t class deqgres wag at its
highest ewer level of 15.2% This was the highest parcentage ince 1902

The Merlolk Teacher Traming Centre (NTTC) calebrated tho sugeeasful completicn al jts largest
gver cohort of students in 2018017 whan 37 sludents complated 1hair tralnrng as secondary
echas| leachars.

Future Devalopments
2016 7 haz bewr @ year of very slgnificant actiity thal will influence the devalppraent of tha
Colleys for many vearz to coema, A key catalyst (o these dovelopments was the Area Ensed
Review of Norfolk and Suffolk, completed in 201817, This review made 3 qumbsr of
rasommendations régarding the college which can be summarised as follows .
»  Thal the Coliege sholld menge with Pasicn Sixth Farm Collega (PSFG)
& That the Collegs should work collaborativeiy with Easlon and Oiley College on the
development ol 2 higher education centra
= That tha Cellege conlinue to suppart the work of the Kew Anglia Colleges Group
» That the Caollege shoukd engage with Local Authoriles on matlars such as transper and
the prowviston for sludent with Spegial Edusational MNeads {SEN)

Since the conclpsion of the Area Based Review in March, the Coflega has worked productively
oh thase agandas ta ansure implementatian of the recommendations, Most signifluanl amongst
thess developments is the merger with PEFC, which was complatad on December 15 2017

The focus dutlng 2017413 will be the syccessful integration of PSFC sfal, systams and
precesges inta tha Collegs

Curriculum developments

In 2015/17 the collags provided substanlial courses in 14 of the 15 subject sector wreas [S5A],
wilh anly 554 3 (Agricultura amnd Horticultune) nol hewang significant levels of activity. Tha Calleges
Cumiculum Stratagy has informed the develspments which have oecurred in 20164 7 and The
following are examnples of this,

Flanning of ke Comizuum: The 2016/17 acadermic yeai s4w 8 number of charges in responsa 1o
the challznges the: Currlcwlum Strategy previded us. Examples Included:

. The first cohor commenced on the BSe i Professional Avialion Engineering Practics,
Bazing itsell from April 2017 within the newly opaned Imternational Awation Acaderny
Moraich {1AbM)

. The planning for and dalivery of new Appraniiceship Standarde, From May 2047 thasa
develapments also had 1o align with the reforms associatad wilh the inlradudlion of the
Apprenticeshp Layy.

. The intreduction of Information Technolegy and Computing provision for 16-18 yaar olis
back into tha Collages curdcuiun as & direct result of LEP, focal amplover apd student
demand.

. The growth of both & peolassignel end lsisure basaed “sommercial® offer for business and
adull stuclents, reeponding to market and employer dermand

- Furthar refinamenta 1o the planning and dallvery for English and maths GCSE thal had o
accommodate the transinonal year between “lagacy” (A*-G graded) and "refomied” (e
gradad] qualificalions.

" Flanning wilbun A lovel provision associated wilh A Levels raforme and the removal of AS
level sludy in a number of curmcolum areas.

Strocturg of curcoium. Tha College continues 1o avglva he structure of the cumiculum 1o dawalop
siudenls. Examples includs:
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* Responding fo the intreduchon ol redarmed Technical Cerificate gualifications in a
nurriber af currdsulum areas with enhanced synoptic festing anc examinabion conlend.

. Continuing to refine Apprenticeship delvery with employears (0 acoammodate the 200 "off
the job® elemenls required by e Lewy refolme i all curdculum aneas.

M Furiher developing the expanance of work elements of programmes fo sludy [or {hose
gludents primarily following “academic™ programmes such as 4 jevels ar GCSEs.

. Restruciurirg our 14-16 Alernative Egucation grogramme for 14-16 Home Educatsd
young pecphe o IMeraase the qualification based content and supporf progression (o Soe
16 dastinallons.

Matvre of coricaium; The nalure of 1the curriculum has daveloped as.
«  Enhancing tutonal support within Access lo HE provision to supporl ralanficn and
pragrasaion of atudents
a  Centinuing 1o grow English for Speakers of Other Languagss (ES0L) pravisian in
response Lo lecal community naeds,

Challenges for the next 12 months
Thene are a number of challenges Inal he Callege*s coriculum will have to respond to over the
naxt 12 months:

» Devefoping the coherency of the & Level offer betweean the Morwlch and naw Paston
College siles, to mesimize the benafitz of mergar to Morfolk students.

«  The further davelopment and plannmg for tha Skils Plan and associgted T level “roules’
including the pilating of 350 Rour wark placements in some curriculum areas in 1814.

«  Continuing lo wark with local awmthorities on the work 2esesated with young people with
Special Educational Meeds and who may have an Edweation and Health Care Plan
(EHZPY in anenvimnmentl of considerable budget pressuras on local aulhorities.

+ Ewvolving a Merth East Norfolk cumiculnnm offer o respond to the challenges noted in bhe
Area Review and in broadan Lha curriculum delivered at Paston College,

« Wanaglhg the impact of the on-going Apprenticaship reform s and Ihe polential changes
from “frameworks” to "slandards”

»  Engaging with and responding to the CFE"s resew of Leval 4 and & provision.

» Focusing on key mress of challenge such as the full implerentetion for the 1618 catort of
the reformed maths GCSE.

Principal Risk# and Uncariaintles:
The Collena has confinuad wark during the 2016497 year 1o develop and ambad the systam of
inlarnal contral, including finangial, oparslicnal and risk managemsant which is designed 1o prolec

ihe College's assets and reputation.

Trne Exccutive Team underlekes 3 ¢ompranenslve review of the fsks to which the College is
oxposad, They identify eyclorms and procedures, including specific preventalbls actions which
shauld mitigata any petential impact on the Collage. The infernal controls are Ihen implermented
and Ihe subsequent years apprasal will raview their efecliveness and progress ageinst nsk
miigation actions. In addien 1o 1he annuat review, the Execulive Team wil 8|86 canclder amy ricks
which may arize as 3 result of a new arer of work baing undastakean by the Cellege. Each mesling
&f the Executvs leam has 3 sterding dam [0 idenbfy new or ernerging rsks or to alier previous
assessments of fisk.

Arisk register is maintaingd at College level which is raviewsd regulary by the Audil Coemmitle.
The risk regislar idantfies the key risks, the likeliheod of thosa fisks occurning, thair polentiat
impact on the College and 1he actions beirg kan 19 reduce and mligate the risks. Risks are
priaritlcad using 8 congigtant scaring syslem.

This is supparted by 3 culture of risk management thraughout the College with sk regularhy
discussed i School and Cantra managemant meatings.

Ll
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Qulined balow is 2 desariptizn of the principal rlsk factors that may affer! ihe College. Mot afl 1he
factors are within the College & certrol. Cther factors Besldes those listed balew may also
adversely alfucl the College.

1. Govarnment funding

Funding rom the Governmenl eithar dirsclly through granls or indiractly via student laan
podicies, remains the key source of income far the College. Grant funding levels remain
stalic taspile consideratle lnbbying and with assaciated casts pressures incl udlng slaffirug
casts and Inflationary pressures, this continues to place pressiras on Lhe College.

For 2017118 onwards, twa key Govemment ralated policies in parlicular have tha patentlal 1a
provide ancitional risks 1o the Callege and require our attention;

+ The Apprenticeshlp Levy and associated reforms which launched in May 2017 have pet 10
slabilise. Thare is conslderable uncertainty aboul raniml lemdering processes being led
by Soweinmnent which hat the bma of writing have suffared sonsiderable delays. In
ackiilion, nationally there is considerabla nagative coverage of the impact of the Lewy an
Appranticeship slarts, which courd lead to the darmaging of the brand. Tha College is
mitigating (hase elfects by preactivaly angaging with our Levy paying employer bage and
also by continuad sUpport for SMEs despita Ihe uncertain nalicnally tendering position.

» The annaunsemant of @ reviaw of alf Level 4 and Leval 5 Technical education by the
Cicvernment adds unsertainty to a currlouium space which is alraady responding to the
Apprerdiceship reforms, the Skills Flan and {he implementation of polices sugh as
Inslituies of Technology. The Collage continues o engage In falional Ao Faolley Groups
and also wilh kay slakeholders in this pravlsien such as Pearson it srder to ensane the al
the College has claar lght of emerging developrianls and gan respond acegrdingiy.

2, Tuition fee pollcy — rigk of setting a fes policy that doesn’t balance nancia! naed and
racruitment.

The Collage actively debates fea pelicy as Ihe emerging poheiss develop in this ama. HE
tuition fees ara al the level ol £7.499 and have boen held at this loval for 18/18, Condnues
activer discusaions will condinue abcut this as the HE market cantinues to adap to rey
Apprenticaship orentaled dalivery. which for the College |s a koy ares of strategic Qroad .

The Apprenticeship Lewvy and astocizbed reforme have furdamentally changed the lee
anvirenment for Apprenliceshipe, with employer contribution requlred. The College has met
saen 8 signilicant impacl of lhis change as wa had strategically rainlained a fog payment
slratagy with our employers. Howaver, the new funding bands, procurement and terclaring
proceduras am Incentive mechanism all add sgnificant complesxity ta the fes incoms
position and an benry carsfully monitored.

Over the past 2 years the College has ovarhauled is debt managemeant procsdures with a
particular focus on tulticn and employer fee delil. This has led to a significan mduckion in
outstarcing debt levels and provides a firm foundalion to conllnue 1o ensure that studan
and employers arg supported o make their paymanis in a timaly Taghion.

A Maintain adeguate funding of penslon liakilities

The financial stalarménts report the share of ke Loral Government Panslon Scheme deficit
an the College’s balance shaat 0 ing with the requirermends ol FRS 102.

Furthermore fhe Collage's balanca sheet includes a provesion for the value of ihe PENoN
hzkitidy for those stafl who transfarred under TUPE to MES. See Mote 26 For further detsil,
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Stakehalder Relatlanships

I lina with other colleges and with univearstess, City College Morwich has rmaty stakehseldars.
Theszinclude.

« Stadents:

+« Educalion Sector Funding bodmg,
» Siaff:

s ParentsCarars,

v Local employers (with specitic links);
» Local Authorities and |acsl schonls;
v Government OfficesLEPa;

« The logal communily,

& LInivorslly of Bast Anglia;

# Other FE institutions;

« Trade unions, and

a  Frofesgional bedlas.

The Collage recaqnizas the impormance of hese relstionghips and engages in regular
agrmy micahen with them through the Cellage [ntamet 2he and by meatings

Equal opportunitivs

The Collage |s committad 1o ensuring equalily of oppoertunily for all who leam and wark here, W
respact ard vale positvely differencas in raca, gonder, sexual orignkation, disablily, relgion ar
belisl and age. Wa slnva vigoroously to remove conditions which place people at a disadvanlage
and we will acllvely conbat bigotry, This palicy is resourcad, implemented and moniberad on a
planned bagis.

The Callege's aquality statement is hal weam:
« A Colleqe whers everyone banehls Irom the wide diversity of staff and students

» A Collage we can all access wilh equal sage and dignity, enjoy @ sense of balonging, ared
where learning and working have besn designed with sach of us inomindg

The Callsge publishas an Annual Equality Repart and Equality Objectives o ensurs complisnas
with 2l relavant equality legislation inchuding e Equalily Act 2010,

The Coliege has cammitted to the Mindful Employer intiaiva 1o assist the mental health
wellbeiry of staff. The College has alsa implamented an updated Equalily & Darsily raliing
programme which all slalf have attendad. Refresher Iraining and lrainkng for new startars is
carried gul an an ohgoing basis.

Disability statement

The Gollege is & 'Positive about Disabled' emplaver and has cormmitted ta the principles and
objectves of the Positive about Disabled standard. The College considars all employmeant
mppllcations from disabled persans, baaring in mind the aphtudes of the individuals concernad,
and guaranizes an interview to any disablad applicant who mests the essential criteria for the
posl YWhers an existing employss bacomeas disabled, evary affor is made W ensure that
snplayment with the College continues. The Collage's policy is to provida fraining, caresr
development and opporuniies for promahen which, as far as possible, provide idanfical
cpporlunilies to those of nen-dizanled employaeas.



City Codiege Norwich

DHaclosure of Information te Audibors

Tha members wha held ofice al tha date of approval of thes repart confirm that, se far as they are
zach aware, there i na relevant audit infarmation of which the Collage's auditors are unaware:
and each membar has faken all the steps that he or sha aught ta hava taken to be sware of any
relevant audiz informetion and la establish thet the Gollege’s aoditars are aware of thal

informalion,

Approved by order af the menbere of the Corporation an 12 Degamber 207 and segred an its
rehall by

Matthew Colmar
Chalrman af the Corporation
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3 Statemant of Corporate Govaernance and Internal Contral

Tha Fallivwlng statemant ie provided o anable readers af e annual report and acoounts ol the
Callage to cbtain a batter understanding of te govarmance and legal struclure

The Callage endeavars to conducl 8 business:

+ in accordance with the sevan princples identified by the Committes on Standards In Publiz
Life {zelleasnass, intagrity, cbjcctivity, accountability, opanness, hanesky and leadershipl;

= in full aceordance wiih the Code of Good Govemancs for English Colleges; and

+ having due regard ko the UK Corporale Governance Gode (the Code™) Inscfar as it is
appticable 1o he fufher sdutation secior,

The College is commiltad 12 exhibiling besl praclice In all azpecls of corporate governancs and in
parlicular the College/Borrd has adoptad and complisd wilh the Code of Gond Governancea for
English Crollagax. Wa have nol adepted and therefere do ot apply Ihe UK Carporats
Sevemanca Coda. However. we have ropartad ¢n our Corporate Governancs anmangamants by
drawing upon best practlse avallable, incuding thoge aspec!s of the UK Corporate Govesnance
Code we congldan to ba relevant 1o the further education sacior and Lesl praclice.

In the opinion of ihe govarnors, 1he College complies with all the provsiens of The Code of Good
Governanca far English Colleges and it has complied thraug hout the yoar ended 31 July 217
This was testad by internal audit in April 2016 for Ponopals 9 and 10 which gave signiflcant
asaurance and furthermore in hday 204 7 for Principals 1, 2 and 3 whizh gawe sirong assurance.
The Governing Bady recognizes fhat, a8 a body entruslad wilh both public and private funds, i
hes a parllcular duty to chserve the highesl standards of corporate govemance at all timas.

City Colleges Mormach is an exempt charity under Part 2 of the Charilies Act 20191 and following
tha Machinery of Government changes in July 2016 |= regulated by the Secretary of Sate for
Educalion for all FE Carporaliens in England. The membars of the Gowvarning Bady, who are
truslees of the charity, amn disclosad Delow.

In saling and reviewing the Collage's strategic objactives, the Goverriry) Body haz had due
ragard for the Charity Cammission’s guidance on publle benalt and particularly upon its
suppkemeantary guidance on the advancament of aducation. The guidance sets oul tha
ragirament thal all organisations wishing to be recognised as charifies must demonslrale,
explicitly, thal their alms are for the public hensfit, The delivary of public benelt is coversd
{hroughout Ihe Operaling and Finanasl Raview above.
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The Corporation
Tha members who sarved the Corporation during the yaar and us lo the dale of signature of this
report wiera as follows-

aliza C Jphinsen, Clerk b e Sorgoraliar hes been [N posilon since 2 Augus! 2105 B 1o present.

Narme | ‘Dateof | Tenmof | Dateof Status of Commhtess | Corporation
appolnimenl | offlce | regfgnation appoimtman sorvad meethg
attendance
: 201617
Mr 2 Bares 21042012 | 4 vears General Wize-Char of A’
ra-appeinted Corparadion; Char
21022016 uf B
DOr A Blanchilower | T&/T0/Z0%5 | 4 yoars Genoral 5 it
hir 8an Hewen 01072076 | 1 year | 3QWBI3017 | Studard Union CR 45
Representatve
M Luke Mitchell 01072017 ' 1 year Shycant Linion o5 1M
Represerialive
Mr M Colmner 1072005, | 4 vears Gereral Chair of R
ra-aapoanied Corporation; B,
120072008, C3
rev-app okl
12072013
re-apoalimicd
24T
M5 5 Dawson T4 l'ia yaars | JGM22096 | Gonaral A 113
il Carpenier 16M1E2016 1 year FUDAIT | FE Siodent o= 4,
: Rearesantativa |
kot appoiniad T 1 ylar HE Stodent Cs M,
Rapregentatime
Me llanring [ 07MF2015 | 4 vears General Chair of G5 B4
Ms  Peasgood IR Tl g Prirwipal from E C& Eilfs
QN2 E
BringpallGED
froen
1M1 52013
Py RFerry 11523055 4 years Seansra -
Mr Wbl IMOEZHI | 4 pears Genara B/
re-appoinied
dk0&2016G
M £ Virqin 121 212006 4 yan's Gieneral & A5
ro-apponkac
T2M 2120110
re=-appaimted
11202014
his B. Sharwogd | 0802015 4 yours General Chairnf s HIF

Kay: A = Aucll and Risk Commites, B = Bugineze Commitee: C8% = Custiculum and Standards Comsltias



City College Norwich
Datails of the Corporation

ltis the Corporalion's respons/billy o bnng ndependent judgrient b bear on issues of slralagy,
perlormarcs, resaurces and slandards of conduct.

The Corporation ig provided wilh ragular and timeby information on the averall financla
performanes of Ihe Callege together with cther information sush as performance agains funding
targats, proposed capitai expenditure, quality metlers and pereonnel related matters such as
health ard safety and environmenlal sasuas. The Corporation mests at least ange & lethn.

The Clark 1o lhe Coiporation maintains a repistar of lnancial and personal inkerests of the
Governcrs. The register ia avalahle for inspoction at the above addrees.

All governars re abla 1o take independent professional adwica n lurtherance of their duties at
the College's expense and have accass (o ha Clatk 1o the Corporation, wha is res ponsible Lo Lhe
Board for ensuring 1hat all applicable procedures and regulations are coanplicd with. The
appainlmeanl, avaluation and removal of the Clerk gre maltars for he Corporation as a whola,

Formal agerdas. papers and reparts are supplied Lo governors in a thnely manner, prior o Board
meetings, Brafings ara also provided on an ad-hoc: basis.

The Corporation has a strong and independent non-executive &lement and no individual or group
dominates s dacision making process. The Corporation gansiders Ihat each of its non-executiva
members is independent of manegarman! and frae from any business or olher relallonship which
could materially interfara with tha exercise of their independent jidgmant,

Thers i& & clear division of respansibility in that 1he roles of the Chairman of the Corparabon and
the Principal of the College are soparate.

The Corparalion conducts its busingss Ihraygh @ number of cormmitlees. Each commilleé hiag
terms of reference, which have boen approved by tha Corporation These carmmitiess in 201601 7
wWere,

Audit and Risk, Bugingess, and Cotlculum and Standards

Minutes of all Board and commiliae meahngs, excapt those deemed Lo be confiden|lat by he
arporation, are availably an ha College website or from tha Clerk to The Corparalion ad.

ity Collage Norwich
Ipawlch Road
Narwich

NRZ ZLJ

Appoimments ta the Corporation

Any new agpointments o the Corporation ara a matter for lhe consideration of the Corporatlon as
a whole, acting in collabaranon with Transforming Edugation in Morfolk, the Parent Undertaking of
the Corporatlion updar the nstrument & Aricles of Government. The Corporation's Business
Cpmmittea Includes a search funstion andis responsibke tor monilonng Caorparaticn memborship
and recommending any new member for the Parant Undeaking’s consideration of appointment,
The Corporalion iz responsible tor snauting thal apprapnate training is provided 23 reaguiraed,

Mambers of the Carparabon are appointed for a lerm of office nof excaading 4 years. In
September 2(H6, The Corporation approved Lhal membars may senee mora than 2 lerms (e bt
years) aiter the Corporalion have assessad the composilion of the Board 1o ansure it continues to
have tha right mis of skills, gander. race, experance and commitrment. This is also applicable if @
SOVENnor wera 1o progress inks a rew role such as Chair of the Board or Chalr of 3 Cammittes.
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Audil and Risk Committea

ln 2016417, the Aydit and Risk Commuties comprisad five membars {inchuding co-optad members
At hacessary). The Commitlee operates in ageordence with written tarms of reference approved
by the Corporation K2 purpose |8 to advise the Corporation on the adeouacy and efiecliveness of
tha College’s syslem of inlernal contiol and its arrangemenis for nsk management, cantrsl and
QOVSIIANGCE Process s,

The Aodil and Risk Commites meets on & tarmly basis and provdes 5 foram for raporting hy the
Callege's internal and fnanrig| statement awdltars, who have access 18 the comimittas For
indepanderd discussion, withoul tha presance of Collena managers. The Cammiiles also receives
and considers raports from the maln FE furding bodies. as they affect the Collega'sbys|ness,

The College's intamal awditars menilor the systems of intlemal control, risk ma nagemant controls
AN QOVernance Moueesses in accordancs with an agreed plan of Inpul and repod fheir findings to
management ang the Audel and Risk Sommillas.

Managers are respansible for the implamentation of agreed recormendafions and ntarmel audit
undetiake periodic follow up reviews to ensura such reconimendations have basn implemented.

The Audil ard Risk Commitles also advises the Corporation an the appoinlmend of Inlarmal and
finencial stetements auditars, in canjunction with Transforming Educatian in Norolk (TEN? Srolp
policy in s araa, and their mmoeneration for both audh and non-zodilwark.

Maethigs altended in 2018/17 were as fallows:

Name ‘ Meat ngs Attended Out of Possible
Jared Capenter (co-optad) | i ) 1
' Salkena Dawson 1 <
Mikki Gray {co-opled) - 4 ~
| Jil Lanning {cocpted) | 2. 2
LBree Shenwood (Chalry | 1. 4
Zak Mirgin ) _ o2 4

Busziness Commitlas

Tha Business Commiltes’s main purpose is to oversee ganaral financial matiers of the Board,
The Commiltge's respansibilities includa maklng recommendations to the Board on 1he
remuneration and benafils of the Prncipal and other gsnior post halders.

Deetails of rarmunaralon for the year anded 21 July 2017 are set ot In nole & of the inanaial
tlalements. Meeadings altandad in the year wers as (olimgys-

! Nams : Meetings AHended ' Out of Passible
Arndraw Bames (Chair} G 6
- Ben Hawen 2 & )
hatt Colrner 5 g
- 5 ﬁ - — —
5 - E .
lan Webh 4 [ a

Cutrleulum & Standards Committes
Therz wera seven members of the Curdculum ang Standards Committes at any ane tirme during

rr
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2016M 7 apd this is incluzive of the Student Union Praadant, FE Student Govemor and o go-
aplad member.

The Commilles oparalas in accordance with wiilten terms of relseance appreved by the
Corporation. Its purpose is to oversea tha curriculum and standards matters of the Callage.

Maatings attendad in the year were as follows:

P Name Meetings Atterdead Out of Possihle
= :

Al dres Blanchflower
_Mealhew Calrmer

Jill Larning (Chalr]
. Correnne Peasgood
Ben Hovan
Jared Carpenter
Arer Whilas {oo-oated]

o Loon| gh||ch: oA
S| | | || o | T

tnternal Controf
Scope of responsibifity

The Corporation is ultimately responslble for tha College’s system of intemal contrel and fer
reviewing ils effectivansse. Howsvar, such a system is designed tn managea rather than eliminate
the risk of failure o achieva Busivess objeciives, and can provide ohly reasonable and nol
absolute aseurance against malarial missialamant or lnss.

Tha Comporalion has delagated the day-to-day resporsbliity 1o the Principal, as Accounling
Ofcar, for maintaining 2 sound systermn ef internal control that supperls the achievarment oF the
College's policies, aima and vhlectivas, whilst safeguarding the publ furde and asselz for which
sha is personally raspangible, in accordance wilh the responsibilities assigned to her in the
Financial Memarandum belwesn Oty College Nonwich and tha lunding bodies. She s also
ragpanglole for reporting to Ihe Carparation any matenial weaknasses or breakdowns in intarmal
cantrol.

The purpoese of the syatarn of internal control

The system of intemal canirol 1z designed to manage risk 1o a seaconabke level rather than to
eliminate all sk of failure 1o achieve policiss, alms and oljectives: it can iherefore only provlde
ragsonable ard nol absolule assuranca of effeclivensss. The system of inlermal conbiol is baged
on an ongoing process dosigned to identify and priarifsa the risks 1o the achiavemen! of college
policias, aims and abjectives, to evatuats the kekhood of those risks being reglisad and ihe
irmpzat should fhey be realisad, and to manage them sficizntly, slclively and economically. The
syatem of intarmal ¢ontral has been in place in City Cullage Nonwich for the yaar ended St July
2017 and vy to tha dake of approval of the annoal report 2nd linancial statements

Capacity to handle rigk

The Gorporatioh haz reviewsd the key risks to which the College is exposed tagather with the
operating, financial end complience contiols that have bean implementad 1o mitigale hose risks,
The Corpcration 15 of 1ha view that thers is a formal engalng process for identilying, svaluating
and managlng the College's significani risks thal has been in place for the penod anding 31 July
20]17 &ni up Lo the dale of approval of the annual reparl and sccounts. This process is regulatly
rennigwed by the Corperation.

The risk and control framework
The syztem of internal sontrol is based on 4 framewark of regular management irformation,

13
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adnunistration procagures ingluding the segragation of duties, and = system of delagatlon and
accourtakllily. [m particular, it mglydes:

= Lomprehensiva budgeting systems wilth an annual budgat, which iz reviewsd and agraed by
the Corporation

+ FRegular revicws by the Corparaticn of paricdic and annual financial reports which Indicate
hnancial performanes sgainst forecasls

a Setting largets to measure financizl and ofher patformanca
v Clearly dafined capilal investmant conirel quidelines
= The adaoption of formel project managemanl disciplines, whera appropriate

The Callage hae an inlernal 2udit service, which operates in accordance wilh the requiremeantes of
the ESFA’™s Poat 18 Audil Coda of Prastice. The wark of the ntarnal audil service is infarmed by
an analysis of the fisks to which the Colfeos Iy sxposed and annual Internal audit plans are
bascd on ihis analysis. The anelysis of risks and tha miternal awdit plans ara endorsad by tha
Lorporatian an the recommendahorn of the Audit Sornmillaa.

As a minmum, the Head of Internal Audit (HIA) arnuglly provides the Corporation with @ rapor
an inbemal audit aclvity in the College. The report includas the HIA's irdependent apnian an the
adequacy and affectiveness of ihe Collage's system of risk managemant, controls and
QOVOrnanoe: processes.

Reviaw of affectivaness

As Accounting Cfficer, the Principal has responslbillty far rewawing the sffecineness of the
system of inlarmal ¢ontrol. The Principad's review of the sffactiveness ofthe system of inlemal
conlrol is infomed by

« The work of 1he internal sudiiors

+  The wark of the execuliva managers within the Collage and NES who hava Fesgarsibility
for the development and maintenanca of 1he inlernal condiol frarrrewanry,

= Comments mada by the College's financial statements ayditors and the regularity awditors,
in their management leliars and olher repors.

The Pnncipal has bean agdvised on the implications of the resull of the HIA'S review of the
efeinenass of the systemn of Inlarnal conlrol by the Audil Commiftes which oversees the work of
the inlcital auditer, and a plan bo addmass waaknesses and ensure confinuous improvamant of
Ihe system is i place.

The Princlpal and executive managameni ieam receives reparls celling oul key parformance end
hek indicators and considers poasible control issues brought to their attantion by aary waning
mechanlsme, which are embodded within the depantmants and reinforced by risk awareness
training. The Pringipal and executive manadgement team and Audll and Risk Committes also
receive regular raports from internal audit, which Inglude ragommendations far im provement. The
Audit and Risk Committea's rela in thls area is confined to a high-level review of tha
arrangements for internal confrol. The Corporatien’s agenda includes a regular item for
tonsideration of sk and conlial ard receives repes thereon from the executive managament
teatn and the Audit and Risk Commitles. The amphasis is an chtaining e relevant dagree of
gszurance amd nol manaly reporing by excaplon, At s Gotgbar 2017 megting, the Corporallon
rarriad out the annual aszessment for the year ended 31 July 2017 by conzldaring
dacurnantaticn from the senior managamant tesm and internal aydit, teedback recened from gl
members of the Corparaton and laking sccount of evaents since 31 July 2016, The Corporaticn
Helf-Aesessment feds into tha Collegss SAR consequently supporting our Odsted jwdgemans.

Based on the advice ef the Aydit Committee and Ihe Principal, the Corparation is of the opinlon
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lhat the Caollege has an adequate and effeslive framework for governance, nek managament and
control_and has fuliled its slatutery responsibility For "the effective and afficient use of resouices,
Ihe salvency of the nshtution and the body and the safaguaiding of their assets”

The Brard hae racewed the annual rapal, has conducted its annuat review of the effeclveness
of tha zyatem of internal control, and has laken actount of any changes nesded [0 malniain the
effectiveness of {he risk managament and conlml process.

The Board confirms Ihat thers 1 an engoing progess for idenifying, evaluating and managing
significant risks faced by Clly College Morwich. This process has been in placs throughout the
year under review, up o the dale of the annual reperl, and is regularly reviewed by the Bozrd.

Fraud

The Carporation has a zaro tolersnce approach 1o fraud and action iz takan to imit the risk of
feaud Lhrough the gystem of internal eonirol. A fraud policy and rasponse plan is inzorporatad n
the risk managemenl framawork.

Bribony

The Corporation has @ zers tolerance spproach o bribery and actien is taken {o limlt Ihe risk of
bribary through e system of internal control wih the maintenance and monitoring of & regiater
of gilts and hospltalily recsived The Collage underlakes reqular reviews of e anti-brbary
maasures in place, ensuring lhal they remain adeguals.

Going Cencern

After traking appropriate erquiies, the Comporation songlders thatl the College has adequate
resources to contaue in operalionzl existance for the foreseeable fulura. For thiz reason it
confinues to adopl the going coneern basis in preparing the financlal slalements

Approved by order of the members of the Carporation on 12 December 2017, and signed
on ils behalf by:

\ ol C&Mﬁmf

Matthew Colmer Corridnne Fnasgu’ﬂﬂ
Chairman of the Corporation  Principal
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4 Governing Budy's statemant on the Collega's regularity, propriaty and compllance with
Funding body tarms and condltions of funding

The Corporation has considered its mesponsibility to naify the Education and Skills Funding Agancy
of matetial imagularity, impropriaty and non-compliance wiih ferms and condions ot tunding, vender
Ihe fimancial mamaorandum In place kehween 1ha College and the Education and Skille Funding

Anengy, As par af gur considaration we have had dus regart to the raquirements of the financia
MEMarangrm.

Wie confirm, n behatl of the Corpotalion, that aftor due snquiny, and ta e hest of our knewredge,
we are able to identify any matenal iregular or improper use of funds by tha Collage, or malerial
ren-complianca with the Education and Skills Funding Agency’s terma and conditiohs of funding
undar the Coliege’s Inancial memerandum. We furlher canfirm that ahy instancas of malez)al

irregularity, impropriely or funding non-com pliance dizcavered to date kave baen notfied 1o the
Education and Skils Funding Agency.

We conflrm that no instznces of material irregulzrity, improprety or furding nen-com phance have
heen discovarad to date. If any instances ave [deified after the dale of this statomanl, these will ba
nobfled to the Educziion and Skille Furding Agency.

Approved by arder of the membars of tha Corporation on 12 December 2017, and signed on
11 babalf by

Voathd— (fog sl

Matthaw Colmar E.‘m‘riabna Paau.'gﬁnd
Chairman of the Corporation Frincipal
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% Statemant of Responsibilities of the Membere of tha Corporation

The mambers of the Camporation are required 1o pragen| audlied financial statemants for each
financial yaar.

Wihin 1he lemvs and condlions of the College’s Financial Marmorandum wilh tha ESFA, the
Corporation, thiough its Accounting Dffizer, is requlred to prepare financial statamsanls lor cach
financial year in accordance with Ihe 2015 Statement of Recommended Praclice - Accounting for
Further ang Higher Education and with the College Acgaunis Clrectlon 216 to 2017 issued by Lha
ESFA, and which give a trua and tair view ¢f the slate of affairs of the College and the razult {or thal

YEar.

i praparing the inancial statements, the Corporalion is raguired to:
« salect suitable accouniing pollcias and apply {hem censistently
»  make judgemenls and eeiimates that are reasonabke and prodent

» stata whether applicabla Accounting Standards hava been fallowed, subject to any malarial
degartures disclosed and esplained in Ihe inancial statements

+ @sgese the company's ability to continue as @ gaing conteain, disclosing, as applizable,
rmatlers relatad 10 going cone2m; and

« usze the gaing concern hasls of accounting unless they sithar interd o iguidate the company
or o cesse operalions, of have no realistic altemalive bul 1o do so.

Tha Corporation is alss required to prepare a Mambears Operating and Financizl Rowew which
dezciibes whal it is trying 1o do and how it iz going about it, incluchng information about Ihe legsl and
adminisirative slalus of Iha Collage.

The Corporsticn is reapongtala fer keeping proper accounting racorls which disclose with
ressonable accurasy, al any ime, the financia! posillon of the College, and which enabile it 1o ansuia
thet the financal statemants are prepared In accordance wilh the relevant legislticn of
incorporation and aether relavant accounting standards, B 15 rasponzible for such intemal contral 22 (1
determines is necassary o anabie fhe preparation ¢f financlal statemeants that are frea from materlal
misstatement, whether due 1o fraud o error, and for taking steps thal ere reasonably opan o itin
order to safequard the assets of the College and 1o prevent and detact fraud and other iregularities.

The mzintenance and integrty of the College wabsite is the reaponsitulity ol the Comporalion of the
Collegs; ihe work carried oul by the audilors does nod invalve conzldaration of these matters and,
arcordingly, the auditers accept no responaitalily for any changes thak may have vreurrgd 1 the
financiel stataments since they waesinlbaly prosented on lhe websile, Legizlation in the United
Kingdem governing the preparatlon and dissemination of financial stalements mey differ from
legislation in olher jurlsdictiona.

Members of the Comparallon are responsicle for eneunng that expenditure and income are apmlsd
for flve purposes Inlended by Fadiament and that the financial transactions conformm to e
authorilies that govarn them, In addlion thay are responsible for ensuring thad funds from the EGFA
are wsed anly in sceordanca with the Financizl Memorandurm with the ESFA snd any othar
eandilions {hal may be prascribed from time 1o lima. Mambers of he Corparshtn must ensure that
there are appropriate financisl and managament confrols in place in srder ie safeguand public and
other funds and to ensure they are usad propery.
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in addition, members of the Corporation gre responsible for sacunmg economical. efficien and
effective managemant of the College’s resources and expenditure, sa that Ihe benefits that shoutd
be derived from the appllcallon of public funds from the ESFA are nol pul at Flsk.

Approved by arder of the members of the Carporation on 12 Decamber 2017 and slgned on it
behalf by:

YA of

Matihew Cedlmer, Chalrman of the Comporatian

A



City College Norwich
&. Indepandent Auditor's report (o the Corporatian of CHy Collage Norwlch

Oplnion

We have audited the hnancial statemants of City Collega Notwich ("the College™ for {he year ended
31 Juby 201 7 which comprise tha Staterwanls of Comprehensive Income, Balance Sheet, Statemant
of Changes In Razervas, Statement of Cash Flows and related notes, including the accounting
policies in note 1.

In @ur epinion tha financial statements:

» give a true and falr view of {he slate of the Collage’s affairs as al 31 July 2017, and of the
Cellege's income and expanditure, gaing and logses, changes in reserves, and cash flows, for Ihe
yaar then ended; and

» have been properly preparad In aseordance wilh UK accounting stapdards. including FRE 102
Tha Finarsial Raporling Slandard applicable in the UK and Republic of [reland, and with the 20415
Slatement of Recoimmendead Practice — Accounting for Furlher and Higher Education.

Basis for opinion

We conducted aur sudit in accordance with [nlernalional Stardards on Acdiling (UK) {"15A3 (UK}
and applicatle law, Qur responsibilities am desenibad balow. Ve have UKilled our ethical
respansibililies under, and are Independant of the College in accordance with, UK athlcal

resqjul ramments including the FRC Ethical Standard, We belteve Ihat the audil avidence we have
obtained is a sufiicient and approprisls basies for our opiniarn.

Golng concern

We are required 1o report to you if we have congluded that the use of the goirg concern basis of
accounting is inappropriala of thers is an undisclosed materisl uncerizinty that may Gast slgrillcant
doutsl over the use of that basis for a period of at leas! twelva months [rem the dale of approval of
e flnancial statementa, We hawe nothing to repott it these respects.

ther infocmation

The Coerporation is responeibla far the gthar Infarmatlon, which comprses the Operaling snd
Financial Review and the Corporation’s Statement of Corperate Governante and Intemal control
and Key bManagemant Persennel, Board of Governors and Professlonal advigess, Our opanion onthe
Nnancial tafements does not cover the pther infermation and, accordingty, we do not exprass an
audit opinion ar any fenm of assurance conclusion thareon,

Cwr rasponsbilty is to read the other information and, in dalng g0, consder whather, based on cur
financial stalements audit work, tha Infermaton tharin is materslly misstated or inconsisient with
the financial slalements or our audit knowledge. Based sokely on thal work, we have nol idantifed
matarial rmisslatamaniz in the other infarmation,

Matters on which we are ragulred 10 rapatt by excaption

Under the Post-16 Audlt Code of Praclice 2016 bo 2017 (Masch 2017 lssuad jointly by Ihe Skilla
Fundirg Agency and the Edusation Funding Agency we are required to report to yvou if, in gur
apinlan:

« adequale accounting records have not bean kapt by the College; or

» the College's inannal statamenis arg not in agreemeant wilh tha accounting racards, or

+ we hava nol recaived all the information end sxplanatione we require for our audit,

Wa have nathing o repor in Thase raspacts.

e
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Corporation's responsibilities

As explained more fully in their statement set out on page 22, the Corporation is responsible for: the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view:
such Internal control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial slalemants
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the College's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem;
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it sither intends to liquidate the College or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternalive but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue our opinion in
an auditor's report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but does not guarantee that
an audit conducled in accordance with ISAs (LK) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstalements can arise from fraud or error and are considered matertal If, Individually or in
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of the financial statements.

A fuller description of our responsibilities is provided on the FRC's website at
www.fro.org. uk/audilorsresponsibifiies.
The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

This report is made solely to the Corporation, in accordance with Article 22 of the College's Articles
of Government. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Corporation those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the
fullest extent permitied by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
College and the Corporation for our audit work, for this reper, or for the opinions we have lormed,

oy B sun
Stephanie Beavis
For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Statutory Auditor
Chartered Accounlants
Dragonfly House
2 Gilders Way
Monwich
MR3 1UB
i
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City Collega Norwich

7. Reporting Accountant's Report on Regularity to the Corporation of City College Norwich
and tha Secretary of State for Education acting through Education and Skills Funding
Agency

In aceordance with the ferms of our engagement lelter and Turdhar tg the requiliements of the
finangial memorandum wilh Skills Funding Agency/funding agresmeant with Education Funding
Aguncy we have caeried out an engagement to obilain hmited assurance about wherthar anything
has come W0 our attention thatl would sugyest that in all material respacts e expenditure
disbursed and incomsa reganead by City College Morwich during fhe parlod 1 August 2016 to 31
July 2017 have nol baen applied to the purposes identlied by Parliament and the financial
transactions do ncl conform to he aulhontes which govern them.

The framevsstk thal has baen applied g 51 oul 1 the Post-16 Audit Code of Praclice [ssuad
Jaintly by the Skills Funding Agency and tha Education Funding Agency. 1h e with his
framework, qur work has specklcally nol considered incoma recelved from the main funding
granks genearaled through the Individualised Learner Recard ([ER) returns, for which the Education
and Skillz Funding Agency has olher assurance arrangements in placs,

This rapatt Is madea solaly 1o the corporation of City Cellege Morwich and the Education and Sklils
Funding Agency in accordancs wilh the terms of our engagement letter. Out work has been
undertaken so that we tmight slate 1o the corporation of City Gollage Morwich and Education and
Skills Funding Agancy those maiters we are required o state In a report and for no other purpasa.
Tr {he fullesl xtent pemitted by law, we do nol accept or assume rasponsiblity to anyane other
than the corperation of City College Narwich and the Education and Skills Funding Agency for our
work, far thls repoH, of for the concluzion we have [rmed.

Ra=zpective responsibilities of City Collage Norwich and the reporting accountant

The corparation of Clty College Morwdch is responsible, bndsr the requirements of the Forthar &
Higher Educaton Act 1992, subzequen leglslation and ralated regulations and guidanes, far
ansuring thal axpenditure disbursad and income received is applied for the purposes intendad by
Partiameni and the financial transactiona conform b the authorilies which goven tham,

Our responsibiliies for this engagemant are 1o obtain limiled assurance and report in accordance:
with our engagement latlar and the requirements of tha Fasl-16 Audif Code of Pracline We raparl
{a you whether anything has come 12 our allestlon in carrying oul our work which sugaests hat in
all material respects, expendiiura dishursed and incoms receivad during the period 1 August 2016
lo 31 July 2017 have not been applied to purposes intandad by Parliament or thet the financlal
transactions do nol conform to the authontios which govem them.

Approach

e conduated our engagerent in actordanca with the Post-16 Audit Code of Practice lssued
jonthy by the Skills Punding Agency and the Educafion Funding Agency. We performed & limiled
aseurance engagement as defined in that framewark.

The abjeclive of g limiled assurance engagement is to parform such procedures as o obizin
miarmation and explanalians in order to pravida us wilh sufficien! sppropriate avidencs 1 express
a negalive tonclusion on regularily.

A imited assuranca angagenenl is more imited in zcope than a reasonable assuranso
engagemant and consequerlly daes nol enable us o oblein gasuranca Ihatl we would become
awara ol all significant matters that might be idenlified n a reasonable asgurance engagemenl.
Accordinghy, wa oo not exprass a pesilive oplnion.

Out angagament inclades axamination, on 8 tesl basis, of evidence relevant o the regularity of
the college's income and expenditling,

F1i



City College Norwich

The work undertaken to draw our conclusion included:

Documenting the framework of autharities which govern the aclivities of the Collage:

Undertaking a risk assessment based on our understanding of the general contrel environment
and any weaknesses in internal controls identified by our audit of the financial statements:

Reviewing the sell-assessment questionnaire which supporis the representations included in
the Chair of Governors and Accounting Officer's statement on regularity, propriety and
compliance with the framework of authorities:

Tesling transactions with related parties;

Confirming throwgh enquiry and sample testing that the College has complied with its
procurement policies and that these policies comply with delegated authorities; and

Reviewing any evidence of impropriety resulting from our work and determining whether it was
significant enough to be referred to in our regularity report.

This list is not exhaustive and we performed additional procedures designed to provide us with
sufficlent appropriate evidence to express a limited assurance conclusion on regularity consistent
with the requiremeanis of the Post-168 Audil Code of Practice.

Conclusion

in the course of our work, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material
respects the expendilure disbursed and income received during the period 1 August 2016 to 31 July
2017 has not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not
conform to the authorities which govermn tham.

:5 -ﬁt’.;-.'r.-url. k|
Stephanie Beavis

For and on behalf of KPMG LLP, Reporting Accountant
Dragonfly House

2 Gilders Way

Marwich

MR3 1UB
|L[_ -Jlll;-_"_i_ ¢ auralaat S a-LU I-\_'I



City Callage Korwlch

£. Statement of Comprehanzive Incomea

INCOME

Funchrgy body granta

Tuition fees @nd edugation contracts
Qithar grants and coniracts

Othar imcaorna

Irwvastrriary ircorme

Drorsatlons and Endoymends

Total Income

EXPENDNTURE

Sraf eesls

(Hhor operaling expenses
Dieareciation

Interesi and cdher finarcs cosls
Total Expendliura

{Daficit) { Surplus befora cthar gaina and 10zs.es
Lass on disposal ol assats

(Deficit} F Surplus before tax
T axalon

{Deficit) I Surplus for tha yaar
Resiricted raserve axpandidune
Actuarial 1oes in respes] of penslens sehemas

Tolal Somprehensive Incoma for the year
Represented by:

Unrestricled camprahansive incans
Reslrlcted comprahantiva insoma

The atgtamen al & prehens e ineams s in raspoct of contnurg aciivmes.

The notes nnpages 32 o 61 oo pact of the inencial stabem enls,

MNiotea

= B [ & o b

12

10

"

Year anded Year endegd
3 July 2017 31 July 2016
E000 £000
27813 7, 206
7.783 7,026
121 213
1,0%5 7152
12 1
 aread 27,498
27,303 26,066
8,221 8674
1,666 1,732
a7 B
37,717 _ 37,085
{73 203
(T3} 403
(T3 403
i1 {2
£1.893) £1.9715)
(196 1518
(7 DEG) (1 516
i1} Fig
{1 967} (1 518)

bt



City Collega Norwich

8. Statemant of Charges In Reserves

Balance at 1 Apgust 2015

Surplus H {Dafec1) fron The income and
exporditure sccauni
Other comprefens|ve icoma

Trarslers patwaan ravaluation a2nd Pmcomea
and axpandifire reseryms

Balance al 31 July 2016

Dakicil) F Surplus from he ncesas end
expenditure socount
(Jther compreFensme oo

Transfars bebwaen revaluation =nd incame
and exponditure raserves

Total comprehans lve income for the year

Balence at 31 July 2017

THe moles on pages 32 1o &1 ferm poel of R0 finarcial sialameants

Income and Raatrioted Revaluation Total
Expandiure resarg résehve
AcCcount
E000 EO0D £060 Faon
(B8535 110 B, 1040 (B25)
403 - 4013
1,013 (2} £1.821}
195 £15961 -
11,30 Py (196] (% 518
(11 155) 108 £ {2,143
(7 ¢T3
{1, 593) (i) - {1,893
185 (5a) -
[1.771] i1y [185] (1.967)
(11,828) 107 7T {4,110




City Collzge Norwich

10, Balance gheet as a1 21 July 2017

Mon-C urranl As5ets
Tangible fixed Assrels
Inveshments

Curreht assats

Trage and other repeivables

Imyestmeanis

ash andd cash aguvalents

Less: Gradilors « amounts Talling dua within one year
Met cument aszals

Total aseets Tags current |abllives

Lugs Gredtars — ameounls Falliry due after mooa then ono
yeAr

Provigmnns

Dwefined benafit abligalicns
CHher prawisicres

Tedal net asspls

Raztricled Reserves
LInrestricted resecves

[ neorme and expardiiure socount
Fosvaluation reesrva

Tetal resanman

Hobes

12
13

14
15
1

G

17

2l
a0

T L |-
000 EQQ]
25 457 X6 26T
—_— 2 F
25,453 25,768
1,493 1,744
7 140 5,354
HE0% T h38
[5.235) {4.542]
3,368 2,756
28,021 28,525
(9,028) {'EI AR
(19,930 (§7.143)
{3,973 {4 0
{4,110} (2,143
107 108
(41.926) {18,155}
7,709 7.904
(4,110 12,143}

T e dancial statermants on panes 28 ta 61 ware approved ang aulborised forigsae by the Corporativn 4 12

Decembar 2017 and were signed on [k behaif on that date by.

\ Lo o

Malt Colmar
Chatr

ﬁmf

Corrlenna Pessgood
Accounting ONlcer



Clty Collage Norwich

11.5tatement of Cash Flows far the year ended 31 July 2017

Motag
Cash {low from operating activitles
{Deflzit) £ Surplus for the yoar
Ad[ustment for non-cash itema
Dapreciation 12
Imparmend of investmanl 12
(Increaseldecreace inslocks
(Irerepseydecruase in cabiars 14
Increasal{decrease) in creditom dua wilhin one year 14
Incrcased dacrense] 1 creditors dua after ane gy 17
Increasaydacreace) in provisions 2n
lnragsed decreaze ) n resinclad roserves 19
Penaionz cosis oss contibulicns payable 206
Audjustment for [nvesting or financing actvities
Invashiment income E
Interest payable 10
Met cash Mow from oparating actlvitas
Cash Nows fram invest ng activitiss
Irastmend income £
Payrenl: rmade to acqJlre fued asaeis s

L-agh Mows from finencing acllvities

Interest pand 10
Mewe unsenured lpans

Faopaymaria of amounts B foosd

Increase ! [decreaza) [t cash and cash aguivalents in the
yaar

Tiash and cash equivasents at Duginning of the year 21

Cash and cazh equivalents ol onc of the yaar 21

The nares on pagas 32 B9 Foeer pait of Lhe fimanacial statemenis,

2H7 2016
£000 000
k! 403

§ B 1,722
- £

251 e
Sty (1.344)
{225} £397)
(35} 33
i1} {2)
Bd 211
M2 {11)
g &4
2,024 1521
12 "
(350 155}
{233 (547
£=1F (B

- 2481
(240 120}
(330 (49}
1,756 BTh
5.354 4,578
70 5. 254
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City College MNorwich
12. MNabes 1o the Accounils

1 Statament of accounting pollclas

The follonwdng accounting policies have baan appded consistently in dealing wilh items which are
considerad materal in ralation o the financlal stalemanids.

Basis of preparation

These {inancial stalemeants hava hean preparad in accordance with the Stetemenl of Racammanded
Prachce: Accounting lor Further ang Higher Eduselion 2015 (the 2013 FE HE S0RF), the College
Accounts Directlon for 2015 ta 207158 and in accordanae wilh Flnancial Reporting Standard 102 —"The
Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Rapubihs of [reland” (FRS 102).
The Collage 1z a public benefil antity and has thereters appilad the relavant public benefit
reguincynents of FES 102

The praparation of financial statamants in cormpliance with FRS 102 requires 1he use of cartain
crilical aceounting estinates. it also requites maragamant to exercise judoement in applying 1he
Collage's accouniing pohélea:.

Baels of accounting

The financial statemenis are preparad i accardance with e historical coat convanhon as modified
by the Lee of praviaus valuations as deemed cost at transition for ¢ertan non-currani assels

Bazls of conzafidation

As a wholly awnad subsidiary, City College Nonwich is exempt from prepanng s own consclidaled
gecnunis, in accordance with FRS 102 section B, Alsa n accordance with FRS 102, the activities of
the student union have not beer cansoldaled because the College does nol control thicsa actlvifes.
All financial statemants arg prapared 1031 Juby 2016

Golng concern

The adiviies of the Collega, logethaer with 1he Factors fikely to affeel ils lulute davelopment and
pedormiance are sel out in the Operaling and Financial Raview. The financial position of the College,
its cashflow, liquidity and bomowings are dascribed in lhe Financial Slatermnenls and astampanying
notes.

The Callege has currently £2.2m of loans oulstanding with bankers and £0.2m Saliz loang, the terms
of the agreemsanls ara for up ta 10 years, The College's ferecasis and financial prajections indicate
thal it will be: abla to aperate within this exisling facility and sovenants for the foreseeable ulurs

Accordingly the Colledgs has a reasanable expectation that | has adequale resources Lo continuge in

operalicnal exstence for the foreseaable fulury, and for this reason will continue to adopt the golng
sancarn basis in the preparation of its Financial Statemeanis.
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City College Norwich
Motes to the Accounts

Statement of accounting pelicles (cent'd}
Recognition of income

Government revenuae grants include funding body recumant grants and other Qrants and are
accounted for under the accrual moded as panmitted by FRS 102, Funthng bedy recuncnt aranls are
rézsured i line whh bes! estimates lor the period of whal is receivable and depend on the parteylar
incoma stream invofvad, Any under or cver achisvement for the AGult Skills Budyet is adjusted for
and reffected In the level of ragurrant grant recognilsed in the incote and expenditure acconnt. The
final grank income Is rermally detarmined with the concluson of Ihe year snd recanciliation PCIGHES,
with fhe funding body following the vear and, and the results of any lunding audils 15-15 learner-
rasponzive funding is not normelly subject to reconlialion and is tharsfore not subject to coniract
adjustments.

The recurmant grant Irom HEFCE represents the fundding allocations ailibutable to the current
linancial year and fs credited diracd 10 the Stalement of Comprahsnzive Insoma

{5rants {inclucing research grants) from non-gowarmment sourcos are regognisead in inceme when the
Crllege is entitled 12 the incame ane parformance related condilions have besn met, Income
recelved In gdvance af parfarmance related canditions being met is recognisad as defarred income
within credlics on the balance sheet and releazad W ncome as e condiions are met.

Governmeant capital grants are capitalised, hald as deferred income end recoghisad i income over
the expectod useful like of Ihe axssal, under the accrual methed ag gz by FRS 102, Othar
capilal grants are recagnised in income when the College |5 sntiflzd 1o the funds subject to any
pefornance rglated canditlans being met.

Income from dulticn fess is stated gross of any expenditura which is not a discaunt Bnd is FECEAN iser
in the: perlad for which it s received.

All incoma fram shorl-term deposits is credited to the incene and expenditure accoynl in the panad
in which 1l is earned on a recewvahle basis.

Accounting For post-employmend benefits

Post-employment bensfits to employees of the College are pring pally provided by (1w Teaghers'
Fenzion Schems (TPS) and tha Local Gevernmem Panslan Scheme (LGPS). These are defined
benelit plans, which are extemally fundad and zoniracted aul of {he State Second Pension.

Tha TP= iz an unfunded schemo. Contribulions 1o the TPS are galculated o as 1o spread Lha ogl of
pensions over amployess’ working lives with the College in such a way thaf the pensgion cost ic a
substantialy level percentage of current and fulure peraionable payeoll. The contibuotions are
velermingd by qualified actuaries on the basis of valuations using a prospective senefil method. The
TPS iz @ mulli-employer scheme and the College is unable to Wanlfy its share of the Larcher hyirng
aszots ard fiabiliies of tha schame on a consistent and reazcnable basle. The TPS is theralore
treates as & dafined contribution plan and the contributione recognised a2 an expense in tho Incoma
slatarnent in the pariods Juring which servicos are rendered by Ermployess.

The LoPS is & funded scheme. The aggsatls of the LGPS are measured using claslng fair values.
LGFS liabilities are maasured using the prajactad unit credit method and discountad al the current
rate of return on a high quallty corporate bond of sgulvalant temn and currangy 1o the liabilthes. The
ariuanal valuations are obtained at icas! triennially and are updated af sach balance sheet date. The
amounis charged t0 operating surplus are the currant service costs and 1he costs of echame
introduelinons, benafil changes, selllamants and curtailmanis,

Kk



Ity College Morwlzh
Hotes to the Accounts

Statement of accounting paichkas (cont'd)

They are includead as parl of etaff costs as incurred. Net interes] on lie net defined beneht
liabllity'assat s algo recognized in the Siatemeant of Comprehensive Income and compnsas the
Interas] cost onthe defined benafit abligalan and interest income on the schama assals, calculated
by mullplying the T valua of the scharma assets at the baginning of the pariod by the rate used 1o
discount the banelil cbliqations. The difference betwaan Lha interesl Income on the scheme assels
and the actual return on ne schema asssls 15 recoghigad in olher recognisad gaing and bages.

Acluarial galns and losses are recognised immediately [n othar recoghised gains and logses.

Shart term Employment bersfits

Shaott tarm emplayment bensfits such as salarias and compensated absences (holidey pay) are
recogriees a5 an expense in ihe yaar n which tha employess render servica Lo tha College. Any
unused berelits ara accrued and measured as the addifional amount the Collage expacts 1o pay a8 &
resull of the unusad entitlernent.

Enhanced Pensions

The aclual cast of any enhanced ongaoing pension lo a former member of slak i paid by 8 collsge
annually. &n estimale of the expecled lulure cost of any enhancement to Ihe ongoing pensicn of 4
former member of staf is charged in full to the College's meema in e year that Ihe member of slaff
vt res,

In subsequent yaars a charge s made to provisions in the balanca sheel uzing the enhanced
pension spreadshesl provided by the furding hodios.

Furdher details of Ihg panzion achemes ara given in nete 24§,

Non-current Assets - Tangible fixed asests

Tangible fixed assels are slated al cost Iess accumulated depracaton and accumulaled impairmenl
loages. Caram tams of fixed assets that had basn revalued to fair value on gr prior lo 1he date of

tramsetlen Lo the 2015 FE HE S0ORP, are measured on the bagis of deemd cost, beéing the revalued
amount al the date of that revalualicon.

Land and bulldings
Frehold buildinge are dapreciated on a siraight line basis owvar therr expected useful lives as lollows.

s College Buildings — 80 years
« College rool — 30 years

» Refurbishmanis — 25 years
» Ztaff car park — 156 yaars

Frawhcld land iz nol depragiated.

Freehold buildngs are depreciatad avar their expected vseful economic e Lo the College of S0
waars. Tha College has a palley of depracisting major adaptations to buildings over the pariod o their
uzeful ecopomic ife of between 25 and 30 years.

Laasahold land and buldings are amorlised guar the penod of ine lease,

i
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Motes to the Accounts

Statamnent of accounting pelicies (cont'd)

¥Where land and buldings ara acquirad with the aid of speciic grants, they are capilalleed and
deprecialed a3 above, The ralaled grants ara arediad to a deferred ineome account within cradiors,
and ara relsased o the incame and expendine aceaunt over the expacted osslul economic lifs of
the relaled assal an a systematlc basis consistent with the degresation golicy. The defarrad ncome
1% g lboaded betaaan creditors due within one yeiar and those dus after more than ane year.

A review for impalrrent of a fiked asset i carried out if svenis or rhanges in circumslancas indicate
thizl the carmying amount of any fixed assal may nel be recoverables.

Agsets pvnder construction

Asgeis under construction are accounted for at cost, based on tha value of architects’ certificales gnd
other diract sosts, incurred to 31 July. They are not dapreceated until thay are brought into use.

Subsequent sxpenditure an existing Mxed assets

Where significant expenditurg s incured on langible fixed assets afer Initlal purchass it is charged 1o
incarne in the pariud iLis incurred, Lnless i increases the futurs bansfits 1o the College. in which case
i is capitalised and deprecialed on the relevant basis,

Equipmeni

Equipment costing ks than £1,000 par Indwidual item (Bxcept for computer aguipmanl) is
recogrised as expenditure In v perinod of acquisilon. All olher equipment is capllalised at coat.

Captalsed aguipmant is depraciated on a straighl-line basis over s ramaining usaful econarmig life
a5 folkows:

+ pars 4 years

»  minibus T yoars

= compular eguipment 3o & yaars

v fumiture, fixjures and fittings S years

+ |ab ! kilchen equipment 10 years

« olher equigrnent 5 veprs
Leasad assets

Cosls in respect of aperahing leases are charged an a shraighi-line basis aver the lease term. &ny
lwage premiums or incentives relating 1¢ lwsses signed after 12t August 2014 are spread ovar the
minimurn laase tarm. The College has taken advantage of the Iransitlonal sxempticns in FRS 102
and hias relained the palley of spreading lease premlums and ingentives 1o the date of the first market
rar ravigw for leagses signed before 15 Augusd 2014,

Leasing agreermenis which tranzfer to the College substantaly all the bensadils and risks of ownership
ol an asset are Ireated as finance laasas.

Agsets held under finance leases ams recognized Initlally al the fair value of the lessad assat for, il
lowearr, tha presant valuse of minimum lcase peyments) at Ihe inception of he lease. The
correspond:ng llabibty to b lessor is included in tha balanca shee! a2 a financs lease chligation.
Arsefs hald under finance leases ars inclyded in tanaibla fixed assets and depreciated and sesassed
far impairment lossas in tha aame way as ownard aysets,



City Collega Noratich
Hoiea to the Accounta

Statemant of accounting policies (cont'd)

Kininum lease payments are apparioned belween the financa charge and e reduclion of the
sristandirg liabilty. Tha fitance charges are allosated over he period of the lease in propation to
the capital elemeni outstanding.

Investmants

Lisled investmeants held as non-current assets and current asset investmerds, which may nclude
listed investments, are slated at falr value. with movemente recognised in Comprahansive Income

Cash and cash aquivalents

Cash includes cash in hand, depasits rapayable on demand and overdrafls, Daposits are repayabla
an demand if they ara in practice available within 24 hours without panally.

Zash equivalents are shorl larm, highly lquld Invastiments thal are readily convertible to known
amounls of grab wilh nslgnlficant rigk of change in valug An investment gualities as a cash
aruivalent when it has maturily of 3 months or less o the date of aequisilion.

Financial liakl|tles and aquily

Financial liahililies and equity are classified acoarding to the subslance of the finatcial instrument's
contraciual obligalions, rather than the financial instrument's legal form

All lnans, Iavestiments ard short term depazsite hald by the Group are clagsified as hasic financial
nsiuments in accordance with FRS 102, Theze instruments are inilially raccrded al the transaction
price less any transaclon costs [hislorical cost), FRS 102 requiras that basic fingncial instrurnents
are submequantly massured al amodised cos!, howaver the Group has caloulated Ihal the dffarance
betwesn the hislonical cost and amerdisad cosl basis is nol mateniel and sa thase financial
instruments ara staled on the balance sheet at historigal so$l. Leans and investments that are
payabls ar receivable within ong year are net digcounted.

Foraign currency transiation

Transactions danominatad in foreign currencias are recorded using the rale of exchangs ruliyg at the
dala f the transaction. Monatary asseis and liabilities denominated in foreign culrences are
tranzlated al the rales of exchange ruling ar tha 2nd of the financial period with all resulling exchangs
differences baing takan to income in the periad in which thay arise.

Taxatlon

Tha Caolleya 15 considered to pass the tesis sel out in Paragraph 1 Schedule B Financs Acl 2010 and
therefora it Inaets the definition of a charitable company {for UK corporation fas purpogos.
acaordingly, e College s potantially exermpt from taxatlon in respect of income or capital gaing
received within categories covered by sechons 473-433 of the Corporation Tax Acl 2010 o Sactlon
26 of Ihe Taxation ot Chargasbla Galnz Act 1992, 1o the extenl Lhel such ncema oF Jaing ane
applied evclusively to eharitabla purposes,

The Collega e partially exempt in raspect of Yalue Addad Tax, 5o het it can onby racoyar around 2%
of tha VAT charged on ilz nputs. Irrecovarable VAT en inputs is included in the casta af such inpuls
and added ta the cost of tangible lxeg gasels az appropriate, whers the inputs themsalves are
tangibla fixed assets by natura,

df



City Callege Norwich
Hodes to the Accounts
Statement of accounting policies (cont'd)

The College's eubsidiary companies are subject to corporalion tax and VAT m he same way a% any
commercial craanlsation,

Frovisions and contingent ilabilities

Provisians ara regegnised when Lhe College has a prazenl laga or constructive ¢bligation as a resuli
of 2 past event. itis probeble that a transfer of exanomic benefit will be required to setlle tha
obligafion and = reliable cstimalg can be mada of the amount of the abligatien.

Where the effect of Ihe time value of inoney ls material, the amaount expected to be reguinad to settle
the obligaten is recognized al preseni valug using o pre-lax discount rate. Tha unwinding of tha
discount is recagnised as a financa cos in the statermnand of comprehanaive income in the period jt
arlsus,

A contingant liability arises from a pasl avent that gives 1he Callags a possible obligallon whose
existence will cnly be confirmad by tha ocourence or athemwise of uneartain futurs events act wholhy
wilhin tha sehtrel of the Collegs. Contingent liabilities also arse in circumstansas whers 2 provision
wolld cthemsa e made but either it is not probabte that an outliow of resourcas wil ba requines or
1he arnoynt of the obhgation cannct be measurad raliably.

Contingen! lialillies are not recognlsed In |he balonce sheeal bul are disclosed in the rates i the
firanicial siatereants.

Fer furher informatlon on provisions ses nale 20,
Agency arrangements

The Collage acts as an agent in Ihe colleckion and payment of bursary and discrationary support
funge, Related payments racevad trom the main furding bodies and subsequent disbursements to
studans are excludad from the Inceme and Expendilure aceount and am shown zaparaiely in nobe
21 except for the 5% of Ihe grant received which fs available 1o the College to cover admineiralion
tosls relating to the arand {3% for the HE Learner Support funds). Tha College employs 1.28 FTE
rambers of staff dedicated to tho administration of Learner Support Fund applleations and

payTNEnts.

Judgements in applying accounting policies and key saurces of estimation uncertainty
In preparng thase finanael stalerments, management have made Tha Tollgwing judgenments:

» Dolermne whether loases enlered inte by the College silher as a lassor or 8 lessee ara COpErating
or finance keases. These ducizions depand on an assessment of whethar tha rsks and raveards of
ownership hava been transfarred from Lhe lessor to the lassss on a lease by leass basis.

« Determing whelher there are indicators of impairment of Ihe College's tangibla azsate, Factors
taken inlor eonsklaralion in reaching such a dacision include tha aconomic viability and axpected
future financial performanas of Iha aseet and where i is a gomponent of a larger cashgeneratlng
uniil, the viability and expacted future parformance of that wni.
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MNates to the Accounts

Statement of accounting pollcias (cont'd)

CHher Kap sources of ashrmation uncetainty

Fangutia fidad 288a0s

Tanrjiblc fived assats gre depresiated ovar their useful lives taking into account residual values,
whare appropriate, The aclual fives of the assels and rasidual values are assassed annually and
may wary tapending on a number of faclors. In re-assessing assel was, factors such as
technologizal iInnovation and maintena= ke programmes are tekan mta account. Residual value
assessments consider issuss such as future market corditions, the remaining lile of the asset and
projected disposal values.

| acal Govarnment Pansion Scheme — deegatly amploved Coltege stall

The present value of the Local Gavernmnent Pension Schame definad benefit liability dapands on a
number ot fectars 1hal are determined on an actuenal bagls using a varety of assumptions. The
aseumptions wsad in delermining the nel gosl [incame) for pensions inchele the discount rate. Any
changes in thess agsumplions, which ana disclosed in nobe 24, will impact the carrying amount of
the pension liability. Furlhermora a roll forward appreach which projects results from the latast fuli
acluaral valualion pedormed at 21 Marsh 201 2 has been used by the agluary In valing the
pensions liability at 31 July 2016, Any differences betwesn the iiguras terived from the roll ferward
approach and & full getuarlal valuation would impact an the carrying amount of the pansion

ligbility.

ocal Governmen! Pension Sciieme — dwactly amployed NES sialf cantracted ouf spopar
Barvice)

For further informallon hald on this provision sesa nala 26,

Prowisign lor irrecalaratia dobis

At year end an annual review is completed for the recovera bility of individual deblor balances. Gur
gocounting pohcy 15 10 provids for 100% of ail nen-student loan company debtor balances thal are
graaler than 12 montha, Far stedent loan cormpany balances greater Ihan 12 montng, we provide
generally al 5% bulin addion whers there are imdleatars of non-recovera bty we will provide on an
individual Bazle. For debtor balanses due lass than ore year, where fhara are indicators of non-
racovatahbility we will proade on an indrvidual basis.

J&



Clty Collegs Norwich
Notes to tha Aceounts

2 Punding council granls

Returrent grants
Cducation and Skills Funding Agency - adull
Educaion and Skilla Funging Agoney - 16-18

Educalion and Ske'lz Funding Agansy - appremiceships

Local Aullority
Flgher Edwcation Funding Ceuncil

Spacilic Grante

Educaton and Skills Funelng Agenoy
Relcasos af ggverimant capilal granka
HE grand

Tedal

3  Tultlon fess and education contracts

Sdul! edycaticn fass

Appreniceship faes and conlracls

Fees fir FE Isan supported courssas

HE Fees {(Including h.gher apprariicaszhips}
Full cast provisian

Total tulthan taes

Educalon cordracte

Todal

4  Other grants and contracts

Clher granls and coniracks

Total

Yoar anded Yoar andad
31 July 2017 31 July 2016
000 £00

1,520 1,534

20,955 1960

3,082 3,031

1033 1,162

2o 358

333 Al

447 Nl

7813 27 25

Year onded Year andad
H July 2017 H July 2018
E000 F00D

180 4224

206 194

314 AGR

5,504 &852
.- 1 I 1 L
Tra2 7 BhRZF

iy | 174

772 7825

Yaar atrded Yaar anded
H July 2017 31 Jduly 2018
FOma FOmn

TH 215

121 213

Ja



City Callege Morwich

Motas to the Accounts

B her incoma

Cataring arw rasidartas

Cther inconie genarating ectivilies
Man grvernment capits? grants

B IBC0 1 NEQE INCorne

Total

] Invastmeant Income

Cithar ineestriant Iresama
Cithar [nlarest recaivehla

Fi Deonations

Linresirictec donatiors

Tatal

Yoar endad Yaar snded
M July 2017 M July 2018
£oog £

a33 Falzla]

445 402

ol 91

(5141 Lt

1,916 2152

Yeoar ended Yaar eivdad
1 Juby 2017 3 July 2018
ou) |} ErHn

i .

11 11

12 11

Year ended Year anded
2 July 2017 3T July 2016
EQ 00

4%



City Coflege Norwich

Miotes to the Accounts

R Stalf numbers and cogls

The: =verags aumber of persens {induding rey ranagement prrsonnal) erployed by ha College durang the yagr,
described as lLiltime eolivalants, was-

2017 2018
M. Ho.
Taaching siaff 274 280
Mor teeching slaff P S0
5G0 580

Staff cosis for the above pernong -
Year anded Yeir endad
31 July 2017 31 July 2016
FHI0 £0iD
Wages and aalarieg” 15994 15,345
Social gecunty cosls L Y| 1.048
Cither penSion cosla 31846 2, B85
Payrodl 3ub lotal 20,540 19,1838
Caoniracied cut s1afling services 4,763 B G5
27,303 28 058

“In ihe 201554 balance the ennual leave aggrual (‘ealling £5352k) Wi revarsad 0 llgh of Lha synchronisafion of
the annual leave year ends, Excludng ibe impact of the reversal of Ihig accraal 2 prior yaar com paraiar would be
£15 AOTE.

Koy managemant parsonnsl

Key rmanagemonl pessonnel are those pwrsons having aulbarly and reaponzibilty for planning, diresing and
cuntrelieg the actvites of the Collage end are reproseried by the Collega Liadarship Team wivich conprises [ha
Chigf Executive Officer f Principal Depoly @nd Sssisiz poncipals and Direclors. S0aff oosts Includa compensalion
Paid lo nay managemend porseane far loss of gffice,

Emaclumants ol Key managemenl personnel, Accounting Cficer and other highar paid staff

2017 2016
NG, No.
The numier of key managarient sersanne! inciuding the Accoanting . p

CHlicor was:

A1



City College Norwich
Notes to the Accaunts

B Staff numbers and costa (cont'd)

The rumbe of key maragement parsenrel ard ather stafl wha received annual emelumands, axeluding pension
contrbutiona and emplayver's nalional sy ranees but including benchls in kind, in e folicwing ranges was:

Kay managament Qe ptaff
parannne!
2T 2016 2017 2016
N No. Mo, Mo
60,001 10 £70,100 q 2
£00,001 Lo £32,000 1 1 -
£130,001 1o €£140.000 1 i
£180,001 10 180,10 -
E 4 - -
Key management persernel ameluments are made up 8% followa:
Year ended Year anded
3 July 31 Juby
2017 2016
£ 0D £Q0c
Galaries 434 435
Brnelils in kind i 1
435 dir
Penzion coniribabarg £ By
Total emoluments 490 L 1)
The pbove amoluments includa amounts payable to the Accounting
DFicar {whe {5 alag the highast pald officar) of:
Year anded Year anded
31 July 31 July
047 16
EQ00 E000
Dalares 134 11
Eeneits I kind
134 13
Fansaa condrinotong o

a7



Gy Collaga Manwich
Noles 1o the Accounts

% Other operating expensas

Tuaching cosls
Blon teaching cosla
Fremlsey costs

Total

Oihar operating expenges nciute;

Audhars’ remunerabon.

Finan<ial sfatarnenls aucil

Interna! acdil

Other services prowded by the financial stalemes audiors
Qther services provided by the inlarnal auditors

Lossas an disprual of tangible lxed 2ssets fwhara nol
ratarial)

Hira of Rssals under cperaling leazes

10 Intersst payablie - Group and College

Cn bank loans. averdreita and oiber fagae:

Fencion finance cogts (Aol 28)
FPersinn [Ingnes cosls (NES)

Tolal

11 Taxatlan

¥aar anded Yaar endad
31 Jduly 2017 M July Hi1G
00 (2] 1]

2050 2,014

3.E511 4287

2313 2,274

821 8,874

Year endod Year andad
31 July 2017 M July 2014
EQ £A000

26 27

12 12

4o 452

Yaar ended Year andad
31 Juby 2017 31 July 2018
£060 £00

| By

=N FLLY |

417 hZd

20 21

527 633

The memibers do nol baleve the Collage was liable for mny corporalion 1ax adsna wit af 15 actidilias durirdg s

pariod.



City College Nerwich

Moles to the Accounts

12 Tangible fixed sasats

Gost or valuation
Al 1 ABugusl 2016

Addltlans
Cizpasala

At 31 July 2017

Depraciatlon
A1 1 Augusl 2015

Chargs far tha yoar
Elimination in rasgact of dsposals

At 31 July 2047

Mel boak value al 31 July 2017

Mel book value &t 31 July 2016

Land and kuildings  Eguipment  Asaclg Ln the Total
Fraehokd Long Coursa of
lameBhold Constructlon
£000 £000 £0:00 £0G0D £0410
ag, 677 2488 134848 - &E 883
289 G651 Lis )
40,168 2,468 14,045 86,703
[ 138 2015 (11.283) {29.588)
(&3] {299) (737 §1,645)
{16,818} (2,214) (12,020 - 131,262)
23,298 174 2,129 - 25,451
23,534 473 4,205 - 26,267

Inherited lanc and buildings wore valued [m 1993 by Tirn Mallkbews Assaciates [a firm of indepandenl chartarec
surveyors), (ha valua ol the land arey element haing £4,560, 149

Eihar anglle fixed Assats inheriled fom the LEA At incorporation li2wve been valued by Iha Chow peraation ol
dJepreciatec replacement cost If lznd and buildiras had not been revalusd they weuld have heen included &l o

caal of £nil.

Lared and Suildings with & et beak value of £7,708,541 (2016 - £7 90¢ 003) heve been [Inanced by exchaquer
funds. Should (hese assats e suld, Lhe Colbege may ba liablo. urder Lhe ierma of tha Finaresial demaorandurn
with e Chigf Exacdlive of Skills Funding, Io surrencer the proceeds.



Clity College Norwich
Notes to the Aceounts

13 MNon current Invesivnents

Year ended Yaar endad
o July 2017 A July 2016
£000 EQOQ

Inwesimerds - Gare|le -
Invesiment - Qither by o
Total 2 2

The Codlege cwrs £1% of the £1 ordinary share capijal of Morfolk Educational Services Limted. & com paYy
Incarporated in Englane and Wales, Narfolk Educational Services Limited was eslablished w provide sharad
servces o e TEN Groyn

Thea College disposed of theit veelment in Gazelle Commercial Limized in 1516 praviously hey awned 11% ol
tae E1 ordinary shiare capilal, 1he amount had oeen impaired [ 44716 o £0.

14  Trade and other recaivables

Year endad Yaer ended
3 July 2047 3f Juty 2016
£00o E00)
Auriouna fallng due withn one year:
Trade rocelvables EG 5 Ei? ]
Amounls cwed by @roup undeslakings:

Subsidiary undertakngs 12 ao
Frepayyments and acerued income G¥3 LT
S mounls caved by he ESFAa 203 227
(ar Dabtora - 52
Talal 1,483 1,744
1% Currant invastmeants

Yaar anded Year andnd

3 Jduly 2M17 31 July 2016

FHIcy £000

Shwrl 1erm deposits - .

Tolal - -

Deposits ara 1eld with banks and building sacieties aperatng o Lhe Loncon markel and orsed by 1ha Finangial
Loncuct Authorily with mere than thiea moalles malurity at the balanoe shot date. The Merast rales for Fusoe
deposics ara fixed Tor the duralon ol 1ha daposit 31 tima of placemeart,



City Collegje Norwich
Notes to the Accaunts

16 Creditors; amounts falling due within ona year

Bank laans and ovardrafts

Lalix loan

Trade payanles

Arnounls owed 10 graup underakings:
Sutrsidiary vncanaklngs

Ciher taxation ard eocial secunly

Accruals and deferred incomsa

Celerrad inzwrmy - Gavernmen] capdal grais

dmaownis owed 1o lha ESFA

Clbwr Credilars

Total

1?7  Craditors: smounts falling dua after one year

Bank laans
Salix laan

Deferred income - govarnment capital grants

Total

Yaar andad Yaar andaod
M July 2047 31 July 2016
£000 000

174 167

i A

el 439

4 -

J3T Jer

2213 2354

iyt 384G

LT g4

SEG 342

5._235 4,843

Year enclad Yoar ended
Hoduly 2017 31 July 2016
(2] ITH EQH

2082 2,255

120 1R1

6226 7051

9,028 5 48T

46



City College Noowlch
Nol#E Lo the fccounts

16  Maluriy of debl

(8} Bank laans and ovardrafg
Bznk loans ard ovardra’ts are repoyalde s ollows:

Yaar erdad Yaar anded

31 July 2017 M duly 2016

£000 2040

In one year ur Gek 174 167
Bebawean ong znd Iwe yoars 1480 174
Betwean twg and five yoars G2 a61
I five years ar more 1,320 1,620
Total 2,268 2402

The Jreecured BB loan was Inlbally for £2, 850,000 with 58 quarletly rapaymants wwer 14,5 years. The loan was
Irkern il o ek Ik ey roof snd windows i e Monwich oulding.

Inierest vall ha calculatad on the balance of the ioan for eact applicable interest Deriod ar e ataragate rate of
2.562%, ard cepital rapayments cormeemeed from Septembar 2010 3

(B} Salix leans
Tha Jalix o34 |5 ntarest frae anc repayable over 4 years with biznnual repayments

Yaar endad Yoar andad

3 July 2017 31 July 2016

EQ0G £000

Inane year o lass &0 73

Bedwasn onc and v yaars 24 6L

Butwwoen bwo and five vears 514} 121

In five years ar nore - -

Tutal 1Bk Z54
19 Restncied Resatves

2017 201g

Tedal Total

FO0a FOnNa

AL 1 August 108 110

Expenditure (1] 420

Al 37 Jduly o iar 108

The funds represcnl conatlons lor prize funda, and the movernen? In 1he yoar reprasents anouats dsed flar prisas
avarded and spenific earmarked achemes relating Lo carlsir oudding wock which are aong released guer fhe
useful Ifig of 1z assels.

47
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Motes to the Accounts

20 Provlelons
Group and Collaga
Defined MES Enhanced rhar Totan
henefit Pensivn panglana
Obligations

ENOn £000 £000 EQOQ £000
At 5 Augus: 2016 0,543 1,783 1 B0 03 21,131
Ewxpanthilute I the paried 11,278 {145} {1.423)
Tranziemad fram irsome and 4 065 | il 4,145

axpad lwire aceount
AL 31 July 2017 19,830 14805 1,865 303 23,903

Dralirad beneft obligatons relate ta the llakditles under the College's membarghip of the Local Gowernment
ponglon Schema. Further dalai's ane quan in Mole 26

Faor further infurmallon relating Io tha MES provision see nobe 26,

The enhanced panske provisar 1eletes te the coslal staff who have already lef: the College’s employment end
corm rlmenls for regrganiealion cosls frem whlch the Collage canned reasonably wilhdraw ai ihe bolance sheet
date This provision has been recaleulated 0 pccordance veth puidance issved by the funding bodies.

The principal assum phions for this calculation ara:

FLrh il 201%
Frice inliation 1.30% 1.30%
Drivcoeanl rate 23095 A%
The other provislons relate te St Andraws House dilapidations, valuad in January 2H0.
21  Cash and cash aquivakanis
A1 1 August Cash CHhar AL 31 July
2016 flows changes 017
£000 £0a0 EQON £000
Caeh and cash cguisalents 5,354 1 756 - 110
Duererafts - - - -
Toalal 5,254 1,786 - .10
z¢ {Cepital commimenta
2097 2016
£0:04 £000
Commijmands conlracted for =t 37 July TS 141

4B



Clty College Norwich

Motes to the Accoupts

23 Lease Qbligations

ALE1 Judy the Crllage had mirdnum lease payments urder non-cancellabia cpersiing leasis ws follows:

Group and Collage
Miir 2015
EDDD E00D
Future minimum leasa paymeants duo
Land and bulidings
Mal latar than one year 178 344
Later than one year and not later than five years 931 321
laler than five: vears 055 -
205T i1
Cithar
Mt later Thar one year a4 AT
Lalar thar one year and not later than five yvears 102 a3
[2ler than five yaars -
187 135
Total laase paymenls dug - 2,244 B0

24  Conlingent ||zl i

The Coltrge hos a conliagent liablity in respesl of Iutara veriation to Lhe NES pension assel ! lizbiily. See g
2 [or furibar informatiar.

Thieo wers no other cortingent Labildies at 21s1 Juiy 2017 {2016: £M&)

25 Events after the reporting perlod

Alsg, wilh cifect fram 1 Decersber 2017, 40 laaching staff and 25 supporl eta® fram Paston Sixth Farm College
TUPL Lransfarred indo CCN ane MEE raspactively fallowens e manger betwaan G iy Collega Nonwick and
Pasien Sixth Ferm Callage [following the recormmerddstion arising fror 1he Area Ravigw process), The Mook
Fension Fund hias breen sdvisad of this Iransfer ard the aciuarial mpact on the LGPS abities will b accourtad
far in the 2011 7- 18 financial atalements.

13



Gty Collegs Norwich
Notes totha Accounts

# Doeflned benefit obllgations

Tka College's employess belong to b principal posi-employment benehil plans: the Teachers' Penstor Scheme
England and Waias (TPS) for academic ard ralated stafl, and the Logal Govarnment Ponson Schama (LGPS)
for nen-lenching staff, which is managed by Modfolk County Counecil, Buih are mult]-erployer defiret-benslll
nlans

The pENSION Goss Are aseessad in accerdance with the advice of incependent qualified actuarles. The |2dast
fomnal actuanal vadugtion of the TPS was 21 March 2012 and of tha LGPS 31 March 2016

Totsl panslon cost for 1he yaar FLi 2015
£o00 £000

Teachers Pension Scheme: condributions paed 1,300 1,341

L.ozal Gavernment Peosian Schems:

Canmrlations paid 1213 1.20¢

FRS 10Z (28] charge ATT . 277

Charga to the Slatement of Comprahensive Iedime 1,755 1.484

LGRS revislon i year {ZT1

Enhanced pengsion charge Lo Staement of Comprehenisive
Incnma il 157

Total Penslon Cosl far Yaar within staff costs n 188 T pams

Contributions amoording 1o £311k (2016 £306k) were payable 1o the schame ang aré neloded in cradiors.

The L&SPS thal the Group paricipates n is a funded defined banaht pansion schems admimstarad by
Marfolk County Council,

On 31 August 2012 an agresmeni was signad bataeeen Norfalk County Gouncil, Werolk Educational
Services Limited [NES) and Clty College Morwich (GON) (LGPS Pooling Agraemant and Guarantee’)
with respect to 1he lenal responsibililies fer fhe pension liabilies for non-teaching staff employed by
MES including those transferning {under TUPE] from CLON and cther group academies lola NES.

On 1 September 2012 148 staff transtarred wundar TUFE from CCNinlo NES {and MES also recaised
82 staff from City Acadamy Morwich and \Wayland Academy Noerdolk, therefors total of 1B s1aff).
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City Collage Norwich
Moles to the Arcounts
26 Definad benefll obligations {cont'd)

The LGRS Paaling Agreement and Suarantse states thal CCM guarantoes o meast the pansion
chligations and liabllnes of relevant siafi emplayed by MES. The Pooling Agreement alao means that
for the purpess of NES® participation in the Fund, Mordolk Counly Councll will also apply the same
employer conlribulion rate as that of CCN, Separatoly, the Service Agreemants between NES and
the member bodies alsc slales thal on exttermination, CCN and the Academies have o pay any
sesoclaled pangicn charges.

» A NES pension provision of ©1, 785"

# The original pansion liabilily of €1, 785k is baing unwoeund in the 201516 and ¢016/17 accaounts
in recegniton that the arignal liability was = discounted figure, the impact of the unwinding of the
disCcount Is a pensian interast cost of 20,000 it year (accumulallve £40,000},

“Furthar variations i the liability post transfer 9.9, actuarial loss or senice cosls groater than
employer centributionz, hava basn gecounted for walhin NES. Al point of gxl from the shared sarvice
arrarigemend, the agreament requires a Tull actuarial calculation of the LGPS debt for the exating
party. At this point the raspedlive shara of actuarial Ioss 2nd service costs would e ngluded in the
full waluaticn of the exit debt.

In addition lo the NES arangement set out aboye the Lollege also canlinues to amploy staff wilh
ongaing membarship 1o he LGPS. This is accounted for using FRS102 and the amounts and
diszioaures aro shawn in the note.

Wiith effect fram 1 Octeher 2017, the 19 members of NES stalf who are based at Cily Academy
Marwich were TUPE transfered back 1o Clty Academny MNorwich. The Norfolk Penslan Fund has been
advlzed of Ihis transfer and the actusriat impact an 1he LGRS liabilitios will be accounted Tor in the
21718 fnancial etatements aiong with the release of habilities 0 NES in regard of these staff,

Teachers' Pensfon Schame

The Teachers’ Pansion Scheme (TPE) is a statutory, contrlbuiory, defined benadit echema. goverhad
by the Teachers' Penstong Regulations 2010, and, from 1 April 2014, by the Teachers' Pangion
Schemse Ragukations 2014, Theze ragulaticns appdy ta eashers in schools and alher educational
establizhmants, Inchading academies, In England and Wales that are marntaines] by local authorities.
In addilion, leachars In many independent and wolurtan-gided schasls and teachers and leclurars in
somo astabhishments of further and highar education may be aligibie for membarship, Membarshlg s
automatic for Tull-ime leachers and leclurers and, from 1 January 2007, autematc 1oo igr teachers
an kecirrars in part-lme employmant following aprointmend or & charys of contract. Taschers and
lacturars are shle 1o opt cut of 1he TPS.

Tha Teathers’ Pension Budgetlng and Yaluation Account

Although leachers and locturers are amployad by various bedlas, their retirement and oiher pENSIon
bensfils, including annual increases payakle under the Pensions (Increase) Acts are, as prowwdad for
in thes Syuperannuation &ct 1972, paid ol of mones provided by Farliament. Undar the unfunded
TPS, tcacheaes' conlributions on a ‘pay-as-you-go' basis, 3nd amployers’ contribulions, are crediled to
the Exchequer under arrangerments governad by the above Acl. Reliremen! end ofher panson
berahls are paid by public funds previded by Parliamant.
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26 Defined benefit abllgations (cont'd)

The Teachers' Pensions Regulalions 2018 requlva an annual account, tha Teachers' Pension
Budgating and Valuation Azcaunt, lo be kept of receipts and expendilure {including the cast of
pensions’ ncreasesh. Fram 1 April 2001, the Agcsubt has beeh credited with & real rate of return
whilah is anuivalent to assurning thal the balanes i the Account is invested ih nolonal investments
Ihat praduce that reat rals of ratum.

Yaluailan of the Taachers' Penslon Scheme

The lalest acluarial review of the TPS waz camied cut as &t 21 Margh 2012 and in acoordancd with
The Public Service Panslons (Walualions and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 Tha valualicn
repert was publishad by tne Depariment for Educatlon (he Deparment) on & June 2014, The key
rezulle af 1he valuation are-

+ employer contribulion rates ware set al 16.48% of pansionable pay,

iotal seheme liskiliies for service Lo ihe sffactive date of £181.5 killion, and notlonagl agsels of
£176.6 billion, giving a rational past service defisit of £14.9 billion;

an employer cost cap of 10.8% of panslonable pay.

the assunad raal rade of return is 3.0% in excess of prlces and 2% in excess ol sarings. The
rete of real aarnings growdh is assumed to be 2. 76%. The assumed nominal rate of return is
6. D%

- & & 4

The new emplayer contribution rala for the TPS was implemented in Saplambear 2015 The nax
valuation of the TPS is urranily undenway based on Aprid 2018 data, whereupon the employer
contribution ratg 15 axpecied to be reassessed and will be payable from 1 Aprit 2015,

A full sopy of the vaiuation reporl and supporing documentation can ba found on 1he Teadhars’
Panelen Scheme wabsite at tha [llowing locatvn

htlpa: fwww, laecherspensions. co. uk/newsiampleyers20 1406/ publication-oithe-valualicn-
report. asps

Schame Changes

Following tha MHutlon repor in Marsh 2011 and the subsequent consultations wilh trade unigns and
other represertative badies an ralarm of the TFS, the Duparment published & Froposad Flnal
Agreement, setling out the design for 3 reformed TRS o ba implemented from 1 Apel 20135,

The key provisions of the ralurmead scheme inslude; & pehsion based an career evarage &3mings; 4an
accrual rale of 1/571h: and a Normal Peneion Age egual to State Pension Age, bul with options 1o
enable membars to retire earier or [ater than thair Normal Pension Age_ Imporsanily, pension beneafits
burlt up befere 1 April 2015 will ba fully protected

In additicn, the Propased Final Agreement includes & Governmant commitment tat thoes wiitun 14
years af Narmal Pension Age on 1 Apiil 2012 will see no change to the age st which they can relire,
and no decreasa in tha amount of pengien thay receive when they elire, Thera will also be further
transitionah pratection, tapered cwar g Ihraa and a hall year pariod, for people who would fall up 1o
three and a half years cutsxe of Ihe 10 year protacion.

Regulations glving effect ta a refarmad Teachers” Pension Scheme came into force an 1 Aprit 2014
and the rafarmed scheme commenced on 1 Al 2015,

The pension ¢osts paid to TPS m the year amounted 1o £1,370,000 {2H6: £1,341 S0



City College Norwich

MNotes to the Accounls

26 Defined banefit obligations {cont'd)
FRS 102 [28)

Under he definilions set out in FRS 102 {28,11). the TPS is 2 muitl-employver pensicn scheme, The
College is unable to idantify ils share of the undarlylng assets and liabiilles of the schems.
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Lacal Govarnmant Pans lon Scheme

The LGPS is & funded defined-henafil plan, with lhe: assets hall in separate funds admimnstarad by
Hortalk Counly Counall Tha 1tal contribution made for the year ended 31 July 2017 was

£1.620 000, of which amplovars contriputiona totaled £1,273,000 and amployees’ contributions
{atalnd £351,000. The agreed contribution rates for fulure vaars are 19.8% for employars and range
from 5.5% 1o 7.5% for employees, dapending cn salary. A deficit payment for fulure years has been
agraed for 201 7-18 thlz will be £193k.

Prircipal Acluarial Assumptiona

The fallowiryg information is baged vpan a ol acieanal valuation of fhe fumd 2l 31 March 2018 updatad in 31 July
207 by & qualhed rdependent potusry

At 31 July AL 31 July

207 H16

Rafe of increase in salanes 2.80% 2.490%
Fuiura pensiars i ncragsess 2.50%, 1. 904
Diceaunt rate far echamea lizabil ilkes Z.1% 2.40%
IrdlaLleo assumnptlon [CFN 2 80%, 1 Q0%

Cormr laton of peneions b lenip sums

Al allowanoe is inclided Tor future reliccencnls 16 alest to take S0% of the maximurm adddenal tae-free cazh up
to HMRE limits lar pre-fgrll 2003 sanace ard 75% of the maxinuem 1ax fee cash fior post-Aprl 2008 service

The current moertaldy assumplions nclode sufiziant allowance for fulure imgrovemets o morality relee. The
assumed [le axpactalions on retirament aga 65 ane:

& 31 duly At 31 July
01T 2018
yoars yaars
Retiring fadoy

Males 22.10 22,10
Females 2d .40 24,30

Relfming ik 20 years
hales 24.10 ad o)

Females 2640 261
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Local Governmenl Pension Schema fcont'd)

The College's sharg of the assats in the plan ard the axpected rates of relurn wers:

Long=lerin Fair Value al Lorng-term
rate of return 31 July 2097 rabe of
expecred al relum
H July 2017 axpectod at
31 July 2016
£
Equities 2. 26,330 2.5%
Boreds L% 10,54 2.5
Fraparty 2.7% 4,654 254
Casn 27% Bdi 2.5%
Total fair value of plan 42,307
aeB&ls
¥akihted avarage expeciod
long tenm rala of raturn 2.70% 2.50%
Aclual ralum on plen 1672

aosets

Falr Yaluge at
M July 2016

L0400

23T
10251
q.240
M7

40,357

4,469

™

The ameunt included in the balance sheet It respect of the defined henaft paEnsion plan and

gnhancod pensions benefits s as follows:

21T 2016

£000 EQ0d
Fair valiee af plar assals 42 307 40,437
Frasent value of plan lixbilliss [82.126) {ET. 363}
Fresent valua of unfundad Tabilnes H111] (117
Het pensions [l akllily)assat {Noda 20) (15,830) (17.43)

Amgunts recognised In the Statement of Comprehengive Income In reapect of the plan are as

followa:
2017 206
000 £0:00
Amalnls elded in stafl cosis
Crrrent sérvioa coel 1,765 1,434
Pasl sarvics ool - .
1,484

Total 1,763

an
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Lecal Governmant Penaton Schame (eont'd)

Amcunts ingluded In inveatment income or inlarast payable

Mel inerest income ¢ {Mel pansion finarice cost)

Amounls recopnigsed in Othar Comprehensive | Pt

Retum on penzicn ptan assets
Experience Insses ana.ng on defined benelt obigations

Chanpes in assam ptions urderlying Fe present value of plan
hablifles

Amount recegtusod In Sther Comprehencive Incoma

2017 2016
E0DD £000
(417 {524}
(417 {524}
[l 174
163 063
{3,057} AL L
f1,893) {1,919)

Wi



City College Norwich
Motes to tha Accoynta

Local Governmenl Penslgn Scheme (cant'd)

Mowemant in net defined benafit ([lability'eseel durlng tha year

(Leliclt) I sehense at 1 August

Mavement jn yagar:,
CAIrrednt sarvice cosi
Emalowar contribetiong
Conlributicn in repoct af unfyndes penofits
Facl aarvice casl
Met interasl an the geflvac Hiabiliypassat
Ausluarial grin or loss

Met dafined banafil {liabilfty} at 3 July

Agzel and Llabillty Rocenclliation

Changas in the present value of daflned beneiil obligations

Defined benedil ohligationa at start of parid

currert Sevioe cost

Imierosi oot

Contrbulinns by Schesny participants

Experienca gaing and lusses on daflned tonalit obligatans
Changes i financial assumptions

Estimated urfunded beraflts na

Estimateg benefits pand

Faal Service cosl

Certadmants and satifaments

Deflnad baneflt obllgaticne at and of perlod

Changes in falr velue of plan assets

Falr valua of plan assals at start of pericd
Intesest on plan asswly

Reetuir an plen assete

Ernployer contributions

Carfribusions by Schama participania
Cariribution in respec! of unfunded benallls
Eslhnalad uriunded barsfits naid

C:limaled nenelis pala

Fair value of plan assals

2017 2016
E0DO 00
[17,743) (14,423}
(1,755} 41.484)
1,258 1,106
a g
(4171 1G2d]
{1 893 {1,214)
(19,930} (17.143)
21T 2076
ENQa E041()
ST 480 4L 55
1,758 1,434
1,334 1.809
J31 345
[A63) (5
ans7 R
(= (9}
(1,322} (1.145)
82,237 6T 480
40,457 33052
ATl 1,285
01 3174
1,264 1,198
351 243
LY Ly
() (9}
0,327 1,1895)
42, 30T

40,337
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City Collage Morwich
Notes to the Accounts

28  Controlling Party

The sempany is condralled by Tranaferming Education in Morfalk. a prlvate company limided by guatantae and 2

redyigtered charily, numbar 1148753

Copisz af ine Transforrming Educatian In Morolk constlideled aceoants can b cbiained fean e Com painyr

Seerelary cho Sity Caollage Marsech, ipswich Road, Norfolk, NR2 2L,

29  Amounts dishursed Lo students

Laarner £upport funds

Balange brought fonsard

Funding body grants - 16-19% bursary support

Funding bady geants - Adult baraary suppaorl

Fundirsg body gramis — Advanced arner loans hurssry sJpport
Lther Funding bady grants *

Dilspuraed 1o studara

Addrmialstration cogls

Amatnt conacdldated v finaneial sizlemanis
Amaynt returngd o funding bnoy

Balance unepent a5 at 31 July. nesludad in cradiors

2017 ZMe
2090 FOO0
182 144
hih A& 1
: B 346
185 154
163 -
1,400 181
{@11] {1,013}
[43) Gl
{34] (10}
{B7) (53}
1 182

Funding bedy granks are available solely for studente. In the mglerly of instances, the Collegs only acte B g
paying agent [agercy basls foe 16-19 end acveead |2armer Ioans bursaries) In Jhesa circumslances, the pranls

and relaled disbursements are therefore excluded frem the Stalement of Comprehenaive Income.
* Ciher Fundieg body granls includes a ransfer of ine free sehogl meals 2015846 balance

Open Cpporlunily

[npErae
Expteraditarc

2016

ROOD
J4

od;

[ T2}

The Sullege acled as tha sgent for the Open Coparienily collecting incoms amd making payvments on [ sghal,
Ihese Iransacuens were excluded I he Income and Expendlture Accanrd, The Cpan Oppodunity activities

teased Aprii 2016. and the balance of L nds wag disiribuled 1o the & staetor matnbere.

fil



